

# MANGO BOARD

# LITERATURE REVIEW

# STRATEGIES FOR FRESH-CUT MANGO PRESERVATION:

# **INSIGHTS FOR THE MANGO INDUSTRY**

FRANCINE LORENA CUQUEL VOLNEI PAULETTI

**JANUARY – 2024** 

# STRATEGIES FOR FRESH-CUT MANGO PRESERVATION:

### insights for the mango industry

Francine Lorena Cuquel <sup>(1)</sup> and Volnei Pauletti <sup>(2)</sup>

<sup>(1)</sup> Crop Science Department, Universidade Federal do Paraná, Brazil
 <sup>(2)</sup> Soil Science Department, Universidade Federal do Paraná, Brazil

#### **Executive Summary**

In support of fruit processors, this literature review recapped recent technologies that can maintain the quality and extend the shelf-life of fresh-cut mango (FCM). This demand is given by the largely variable and rather modest visual and sensory conditions for US consumers. The shelf-life of FCM lasts around 10 days, according to the mango cultivar, pre-harvest agronomic practices, harvest maturity and postharvest management. Depending on the cultivar, the mango firmness for harvest to product FCM is between 25 (5.62 lbf) and 35 N (7.86 lbf). In unripe FCM, the desirable sensory properties cannot be fully exploited, while sensory evaluations with trained graders are very scarce. The ideal temperature range to prolong FCM shelf-life and reduce the risk of proliferation of microbial foodborne human pathogens is storage at 4 - 5 °C, not exceeding 8 °C. A general concern is to avoid chilling injury at temperatures below 10 °C (the degree of chilling sensitivity of mango stored at low temperature is cultivar-dependent). In the FCM industry, a balance between an acceptable shelf-life and appealing sensory properties must be found, to be able to offer a high-quality product that meets the expectations of all parties. Foodborne pathogens can survive or grow at the said low temperatures. Therefore, aside from refrigeration, manufacturing and packaging practices must also be optimized to effectively control foodborne pathogens in FCM. Supercooling by oscillating magnetic fields (OMF) has been used mainly to inhibit ice nucleation (crystal formation). By this technique, minimally processed mango fruits are frozen at a temperature of - 5°C for up to 7 days without ice crystal formation within the cells. The enzymatic browning potential of FCM can vary significantly

among mango cultivars. Calcium is a vital macronutrient that plays an important role in avoiding FCM browning. Edible coatings with products containing calcium, chitosan, citric acid, plasticizers, plant extracts, and nanocomposite materials are discussed. The main FCM foodborne microorganisms, e.g., Salmonella spp., Bacillus spp., Micrococcus spp., Staphylococcus spp., Klebsiella spp., Pseudomonas spp. and Escherichia coli and their control with sanitizers and natural additives were described. Ecofriendly technologies and non-thermal technologies have been a trend. Ultraviolet-C (UV-C), pulsed-light (PL), lightemitting diode (LED), cold-plasma (CP), high-intensity ultrasound (HIU), neutral electrolyzed water (NEW), acidic electrolyzed water (AEW), modified atmosphere (MA) and packaging were discussed with a view to increasing the shelf-life of FCM. We concluded that very few alternatives have been exploited to increase the quality and shelf-life of the product. In view of the lack of information related to the most recent findings for FCM, observed in this review, in the end we proposed some topics for future research that can be addressed to improve FCM quality and shelf life.

**Keywords**: *Mangifera indica*, minimally processed, browning, edible coating, sanitizer, microbiologic control, ultraviolet-C, pulsed light, cold plasma, high intensity ultrasound, electrolyzed water, modified atmosphere, packaging.

# Contents

1.	Introduction	3		
2.	Methods	4		
3.	Worldwide importance of mango	5		
4.	Rising importance of fresh-cut mango	6		
5.	Fresh-cut mango quality	6		
6.	Factors affecting fresh-cut mango quality			
7.	Mango cultivar performance9			
8.	Ripening stage for harvest	9		
9.	Storage temperature10			
10.	0. Oscillating magnetic field (OMF) 11			
11.	11. Enzymatic browning 12			
12.	12. Edible coating 15			
13.	13. Microbiological aspects of FCM 17			
14.	14. Sanitizer compounds19			
15.	15. Natural additives			
16.	16. Non-thermal technologies22			
16.1	I. Ultraviolet- C (UV-C)	. 22		
16.2	2. Pulsed light (PL)	. 23		
16.3	3. Light-emitting diode (LED)	. 25		
16.4	<ol> <li>Cold plasma (CP)</li> </ol>	. 25		
16.5	5. High Intensity Ultrasound (HIU)	. 26		
16.6	6. Neutral electrolyzed (NEW) and acidic electrolyzed water (AEW)	. 27		
17.	17. Modified atmosphere (MA) and packaging29			
18.	18. Conclusions			
Ref	References3			

# 1. Introduction

The visual and sensory conditions of fresh-cut mango (FCM) offered to US consumers during a year-long cycle of imports from different countries are mostly variable, but rather modest. The use of optimum processing practices and proper

packaging and handling after processing are also critical to obtain consumer satisfaction (Brecht et al., 2017). This literature review focused on the recent technologies that guarantee the quality and extend the shelf-life of FCM, to offer additional support for processors. A description will be given of the effects of low temperature storage, edible coatings, anti-browning substances, sanitizers, thermal and non-thermal disinfection, modified atmosphere and packaging.

# 2. Methods

The literature review was carried out from January 1 to July 31, in 2023. The systematic literature search strategies and article eligibility criteria are presented in this section.

# 2.1. Eligibility criteria

The following eligibility criteria were used to collect FCM-related literature:

- Inclusion criteria: the literature review included FCM together with the keywords: quality, shelf-life, storage, cultivars, ripening, chilling, microbiological control, sanitizer, edible coating, modified atmosphere and packaging, in peerreviewed journals from 2013 to 2023 in English and, finally, the most important papers previously published and cited by the authors of the articles chosen based on the above criteria.
- Literature review scope: search in the most important Agricultural Science four Databases: Web of Science, Scopus, Science, Direct and Google Scholar with the inclusion criteria keywords (Table 1). Bibliometric methods as described by Donthu et al. (2021) showed that the frequency of terms related with "fresh-cut mango shelf-life" worldwide in decreasing order is mango - 6, quality - 4, freshcut - 3, mango fruit - 3, storage - 3, chitosan - 2, FCM - 2 and softening - 2.

Table 1. Number of articles cited in the database sources on fresh-cut mango shelf-life and a second related keyword.

Databases	Number of articles
Web of Science	60
Scopus	64
Science Direct	18
Google Scholar	31

# 3. Worldwide importance of mango

Economically, mango (*Mangifera indica* L.) is one of the most important tropical fruits. Owing to its pleasant aroma, juicy texture and sweet taste, it is highly popular among consumers around the world and is known as "the king of tropical fruits" (Yi et al., 2022). Certain phytonutrients (carotenoids, flavonoids, dietary fibers and microelements) found in mango fruit possibly have health-promoting effects, such as scavenging free radicals, being digestive and maintaining the cellular electrolyte balance (Maldonado-Celis et al., 2019).

The world production of mango has doubled since 2000 (Perea-Moreno et al., 2018) and is expected to reach 65 million tons in 2028, with an annual growth rate of about 2.1% (Organisation des Nations Unites pour L'alimentation et L'agriculture, 2020; Taïbi et al., 2022).

More than 90% of the global production is destined for the respective local markets or neighboring countries (Organisation des Nations Unies pour L'alimentation et L'agriculture, 2020). International exports are estimated at a continuous 3.4% of the worldwide production until 2028 (Taïbi et al., 2022). As

an imported commodity in Asian, European and North American markets, mango has increasingly gained in popularity.

Very little of the high world production of mango is being processed to increase fruit preservation (Link et al., 2018), thus, extending the shelf-life is still an important issue.

## 4. Rising importance of fresh-cut mango

Nowadays, the demand for fresh-cut products has increased in response to the quality demand and modern lifestyle of consumers (Chimvaree et al., 2020; Yi et al., 2022; Yildiz and Aadil, 2022). Tesco, one of the largest fresh-cut retailers in the global market, reported that the demand for healthy fruit snacks, such as mango "fingers", has increased by 400% between 2016 and 2017 (Tesco, 2017). Mango belongs to the fruits suited for minimal processing, a feature that meets the increased market demand of ready-to-eat fresh fruit products (Yousuf et al., 2018). Processed mango products are abundantly available in form of fruit salads, dried slices, frozen chunks and slices, canned slices, jams, traditional pickles and chutneys. This value-added product can be sold at a higher price (Ulloa et al., 2015) and indicates an alternative way to minimize post-harvest losses (Taïbi et al., 2022).

### 5. Fresh-cut mango quality

Postharvest processing of mango induces biochemical changes, increases fruit respiration rate, tissue softening, and the decompartmentalization of enzymes, intensifies antioxidant activity, raises polyphenolic contents and stimulates the development of undesirable color changes due to enzymatic browning. Freshly cut mango also provides a substrate for microbial growth, increasing the risk of developing pathogens. Therefore, the shelf-life of fresh-cut fruit is considerably shorter than that of whole fruit (Robles-Sanchez, 2013; Ngamchuachit et al., 2015; Marín et al., 2020). Even after preservation treatments to extend shelf-life, FCM has a consumption adequacy period of only a few days (Salinas-Roca et al., 2017; Putnik et al., 2017; Chimvaree et al., 2020; Owino and Ambuko, 2021; Luciano et al., 2022; Yi et al., 2022).

Several studies suggested the importance of sensory evaluations with trained graders to determine the shelf-life of fresh-cuts products. However, sensory evaluation protocols can be time-consuming and expensive, and some authors do not think it is necessary to repeat FCM sensorial analysis for every FCM research (Salinas- Hernández et al., 2015).

According to Salinas-Hernández et al. (2015), studies have shown that sensorial properties may be correlated with physicochemical features, and they can be used as predictors of FCM shelf-life, since they attain almost the same level of reliability as sensory analysis by trained panelists or consumers. The above authors recorded high correlation coefficients between shelf-life inferred from consumer acceptability scores and physicochemical variables. The lightness (L\*) of the product is clearly related with color and brightness, whereas firmness is related with texture. Total soluble solids (TSS) can be associated with sugars and organic acids and are therefore related with fruit flavor and sweetness. In addition, chroma and hue angle are related with color and color intensity.

However, Ngamchuachit et al. (2015) did not agree with Salinas-Hernández et al. (2015) but claimed that the physicochemical properties of FCM cannot always be used as predictors of the sensory quality. The former authors suggested that it is necessary to previously consider the firmness and color of the product of each cultivar (the coordinate that measures the colors between red/green (a\*), the coordinate that measures the colors between yellow/blue (b\*) and their relations (a\*/b\*)) to predict the visual and sensory quality of FCM 'Kent'. The L\* value and instrumental firmness of FCM 'Tommy Atkins' proved useful as predictors for texture properties, i.e., melting, slipperiness, chewiness and firmness. Interestingly, SSC, titratable acidity (TA) and SSC/TA were rather poor predictors of sensory sweetness.

## 6. Factors affecting fresh-cut mango quality

Factors that are fundamental for FCM quality include the quality of the intact (uncut) mango, cultivar, pre-harvest agronomic practices, harvest maturity, postharvest handling procedures, processing and preparation methods, i.e., sharpness of cutting tools, size and surface area of the slices, washing and removal of surface moisture, storage, and processing temperature (Shende et al., 2020; Owino and Ambuko; 2021). In addition, FCM must be stored at no more than 5 °C, to prolong shelf-life and reduce the risk of potential proliferation of microbial food-borne human pathogens (Food and Drug Administration, 2017). Under these conditions, unripe FCM cannot fully develop desirable sensory properties, such as appearance, brightness, browning, odor, flavor, texture, color, acidity, and sweetness (Salinas-Hernández et al., 2015), which may negatively affect the repeat-purchase behavior of consumers. In this context, the FCM industry needs to reach a balance between acceptable shelflife and appealing sensory features, to offer a high-quality product that meets the expectations of all parties involved. Processing riper fruit might be a way to achieve this goal, although this can simultaneously increase susceptibility to wounding during processing and reduce the shelf-life (Robles-Sanchez et al., 2013; Ngamchuachit et al., 2015; Brecht et al., 2017; Marín et al., 2020).

FCM the ideal storage temperature is 4 <sup>o</sup>C as, while 8 <sup>o</sup>C can also be an option to store it safely for 10 days (Luciano et al., 2022), but some foodborne pathogens can survive or grow under these temperatures. *Listeria monocytogenes* growth in FCM is a concern because of its ability to grow under cooling, with or without oxygen for weeks to months (Zhang et al., 2020). *Escherichia coli* and *Salmonella* spp can also survive during storage at 5 °C, while psychotropic *Listeria monocytogenes* can grow at 4 °C. Thus, together with refrigeration, good manufacturing and packing practices (Brecht et al., 2023) must be applied to effectively control foodborne pathogens on fresh-cut fruits without deterioration (Kim et al., 2017).

## 7. Mango cultivar performance

Key decisions for the success of FCM consist of the selection of a mango cultivar with excellent quality and processing potential at the optimal ripening stage for fresh-cut processing. The choice should be based on appearance and sensory and overall quality (Dea et al., 2013; Sellamuthu, 2013). A challenge is that mango cultivars can vary significantly in pulp texture, skin color, flavor, functional compounds, storage period and browning potential (Sellamuthu et al., 2013). Enzymatic activities vary according to the mango genotype (Romig, 1995). So, cultivars with reduced key enzyme activity and consequently less browning, softening, and volatile compounds, such as can be seen in the 'Totapuri', an Indian mango cultivar, are generally more desirable for minimal processing (Sharma and Rao, 2017).

Generally, fresh mango fruit shelf-life is limited to just a few days, which depends on the mango cultivar. 'Ataulfo' fruits stored at 5°C have a shelf-life of 21 days and 'Keitt' fruits of 9 days. On this basis, the latter is more indicated for FCM production (Bhatkar et al., 2022) because it helps to decrease the postharvest losses. In addition, 'Kent' is more desirable to product FCM due to its better sensory quality during storage compared with 'Tommy Atkins' (Ngamchuachit et al., 2015).

#### 8. Ripening stage for harvest

The mango ripening stage at the time of cutting is an important factor that affects the FCM quality (Ngamchuachit et al., 2015) and is more reliable to predict FCM shelf-life than pulp color or soluble solids content (SSC) (Dea et al., 2013). Mango fruits are acidic, astringent and rich in ascorbic acid (vitamin C). During the ripening process, the level of vitamin C decreases and the levels of provitamin A, vitamins B1, and B2, sucrose (the major sugar), fructose, and glucose increase (Montoya et al., 2019).

To slow down fresh-cut fruit deterioration, processors tend to cut mango on reception without pre-ripening to avoid overripe, soft, bruised and decayed fruit (Brecht et al., 2017). Mango fruits processed at an earlier ripening stage resulted in acid FCM and with poor aromatic properties, affecting the product quality (Leneveu-Jenvrin et al., 2021).

The ideal firmness level for the harvest of mango destined for FCM is based on the ease of handling, visual quality (primary purchase criterion), and quality maintenance during storage, and consumer acceptance. They all depend on the mango cultivar. For 'Kent' mango, fruit firmness is assumed to be best between 35 N (7.86 lbf) (Ngamchuachit et al., 2015) and 30 N (6.74 lbf) (Dea et al., 2013). However, for 'Tommy Atkins' the best fruit' firmness is 25 N (5.62) (Ngamchuachit et al., 2015). Fresh- cut mango (of several cultivars) provided by tropical fruit importers in the USA that had least browning, translucency, fermented off flavor, and the greatest cut edge sharpness occurred when firmness of the stored fruit was 35 N (Plotto et al., 2018).

#### 9. Storage temperature

Fresh-cut fruits are highly perishable and must be stored under refrigeration after packaging to ensure safety and sensory quality (De Corato and Cancellara, 2019). Generally, storage and shipping last no longer than 10 days, but cut fruits can have an even shorter shelf-life if storage conditions are inappropriate (Amaro et al., 2018; Luciano et al., 2022).

The performance of FCM of four mango cultivars ('Kesar', 'Ladvo', 'Rajapuri' and 'Totapuri') varied widely during low temperature storage. In response to the storage condition at  $5\pm 1^{\circ}$ C and 95% RH, the quality properties represented by bioactive compounds (vitamin C, carotenoids, total phenolic content and antioxidant activity) and sensorial properties (visual perception, though taste, odor and firmness) improved considerably when compared to FCM stored at  $10\pm 1^{\circ}$ C and 87% RH. Moreover, the storage of these FCM cultivars at

5 °C  $\pm$  1°C showed lower water loss and microbial contamination (Sharma and Rao, 2017).

Low temperature storage is highly recommended for fresh-cut fruit as it can slow down ethylene sensitivity and metabolic activities reduce microbial growth and extend the shelf-life (Sharma et al., 2017). Restaurants and consumers usually store FCM together with other products between 4 and 8 °C, which can cause chilling injury (CI) on the product, depending on the mango cultivar and time (Taïbi et al., 2022). But, in contrast when mango fruit is exposed to temperatures below 10 °C, chilling injuries (CI) occur because of malfunction or disruption of cellular wall and membrane functions that affects the transfer or flow of cellular fluids in and out of the cell, resulting in irregular metabolites (amino acids, sugars and mineral salts). The degree of chilling sensitivity of mango varieties under low temperature storage has been documented in a number of studies. Nevertheless, the response to cold storage of chunks prepared from various mango cultivars, mainly in terms of changes in nutritional quality as well as sensory properties, still needs be investigated (Sharma et al., 2017).

# 10. Oscillating magnetic field (OMF)

Supercooling by oscillating magnetic fields (OMF) has been used mainly to inhibit ice nucleation, i.e., a process of lowering the temperature of food material below its freezing point without allowing ice crystal formation. In a supercooled state, latent heat removal and the following phase transition do not occur. In this way, freezing damage during storage can be avoided. Supercooling preservation potentially extends the shelf-life of food without ice crystal formation. However, it is extremely difficult to create and maintain a supercooled state over an extended period because this metastable state is thermodynamically unstable (Stonehouse and Evans, 2015). The application of an external magnetic field (MF) has attracted considerable interest of the food freezing industries. It has been hypothesized that since MF can interact with water and induce reorientation and realignment of water molecules, these changes would inhibit or promote ice nucleation during the freezing process (Kang et al., 2021).

An OMF at a field strength of 50 mT applied for the supercooling preservation of FCM chunks, which preserved in a supercooled state at -5°C for up to 7 days. The quality assessment, which assessed weight loss and firmness, indicated that supercooling preservation potentially extended the shelf- life of fresh-cut mango without losing the original quality (Kang et al., 2021).

## 11. Enzymatic browning

Peeling and cutting operations involved in processing FCM eliminate the protective pericarp, which greatly disrupts the integrity of product tissues, leading to wounding stress, increased water loss, flavor loss, tissue softening and enzymatic pulp browning (Charles, 2013b; Montoya et al., 2019; Khedr, 2022; Yi et al., 2022).

Enzymatic browning indicates the water-soaked appearance of fruit tissues, known as one of major concerns, related to FCM quality (Supapvanich and Boonyaritthongchai, 2016; Chimvaree et al., 2020). It results from undesirable physio-biochemical reactions, such as increases in respiration intensity and ethylene production, activation of oxidases and burst of reactive oxygen species (ROS) (Yi et al., 2022). This occurs when the enzyme polyphenol oxidase (PPO) is released into the cytosol and the reactions are triggered. The reaction occurs between O<sub>2</sub> and PPO, where monophenol is hydroxylated to o-diphenol and diphenol could be oxidized to o-quinones, which undergoes polymerization resulting in black-brownish pigments (Yildiz et al., 2020).

The enzymatic browning potential of FCM can vary significantly among mango cultivars (Ngamchuachit et al., 2015; Sharma and Rao, 2017). 'Tommy Atkins' responded to antioxidant solutions much more readily than 'Kent' with reduced slice browning. 'Tommy Atkins' slices treated with an antioxidant solution had a shelf-life of 10 days and uncoated slices less than 7 days, whereas 'Kent' chunks, treated with antioxidant solution, were marketable for 11 days (Marín et al., 2020). Although browning was not intensified in low-maturity mango fruits, this feature defined the low quality of the final product (Leneveu-Jenvrin et al., 2021).

Calcium is a vital macronutrient that plays an important role to avoid browning, by maintaining cell wall firmness and integrity; in addition, it is responsible for fruit quality (Manganaris et al., 2005). In principle, there are two ways to increase the calcium concentration in fruits. First, by increasing calcium import through the xylem. This way can be effective in the early fruit growth phases. The second way consists of foliar application of one or more calcium salts (usually calcium chloride, calcium nitrate, or calcium hydroxide) (Winkler et al., 2020; Khedr, 2022).

Pre-harvest foliar application of 2% calcium lactate on 'Keitt' mango trees in combination with post-harvest treatments of FCM with 2% ascorbic acid (AsA), cold stored at 4°C for 12 days, was the most effective treatment, without affecting quality or taste, compared with untreated FCM (Khedr, 2022).

Calcium ascorbate (CaAs) has been found to be the most effective antibrowning agent and can be marketed as a minimal chemical input. Its application increases the antioxidant status and extends shelf-life of several fruits. Several studies have focused on combined techniques with better antifungal efficiency than the chemical alternatives. The combination of hot water (HT) and calcium treatments has been used to control postharvest diseases and has sucessfully maintained the postharvest fruit quality (Boonyaritthongchai and Keawmanee, 2020).

Hot water alone or in combination with other agents, e.g. calcium salts, has been used to prevent browning reactions and maintain the texture of various vegetables and fruits. The combination of HT (50°C for 30 min) treatments of the whole mango, followed by of FCM immersion in 2% CaAs dip and storage at 4°C for 6 days, resulted in browning reduction and high sensorial acceptance (Bonyaritthongchai and Keawmanee, 2020). Steam treatment (ST) of FCM at 60°C for 3 min reduced polyphenol oxidase activity by 72% and decreased browning but caused a loss of brightness (Leneveu-Jenvrin et al., 2021).

To investigate the effect of anti-browning agents on fresh-cut mango, the inhibitory activity of four solutions (ascorbic acid, citric acid, L-cysteine and glutathione) were tested (Marín et al., 2020). Results indicated that the degree of changes in pulp color of FCM was related to the concentration of the different anti-browning agents. Among the tested compounds, L-cysteine and glutathione were most effective to inhibit browning. Moreover, these agents reduced the respiration rate, inducing a decrease in metabolic activities and suppressing the enzyme activities of PPO and POD and tissue metabolism. This slowed down the quality losses in terms of color of FCM pulp, while citric acid significantly inhibited microbial growth (Techavuthiporn and Boonyaritthonghai, 2016). Citric acid was found to be the most effective antibrowning agent (Marín et al., 2020).

The use of synthetic chemicals to treat fresh-cut products has become unpopular due to growing concerns about food safety. For this reason, research is being conducted to develop alternative methods to control browning in minimally processed products. For example, studies have demonstrated the browning inhibiting and quality-maintaining potential of natural agents such as aloe vera (Alberio et al., 2015), whey protein (Yi and Ding, 2014), and rice bran extracts (Sukhonthara et al., 2016). However, no research on the efficacy of natural agents in preventing browning of FCM is available (Chimvaree et al., 2020).

A potential for visual appearance maintenance and browning and discoloration inhibition was observed in FCM 'Nam Dok Mai', a famous commercial Thailandese cultivar with high susceptibility to tissue browning, by dipping the cut pieces in 25% honey for 2 min (Supapvanich and Boonyaritthongchai, 2016). Another way to control browning of this cultivar is by dipping the mango pieces in 50% pineapple juice extracted from the pineapple core, then exposing them to air drying, packaging in a plastic box and storage at 4°C for 6 days. Sensory evaluation proved the efficacy of pineapple juice

14

dipping by the maintenance of the overall quality (Boonyaritthongchai et al., 2018).

## 12. Edible coating

The use of edible coatings for an extended shelf-life and improved quality of fresh-cut fruit is an extensively studied strategy (Ghidelli and Pérez-Gago, 2018; Yousuf et al., 2018). These coatings preserve the FCM quality by reducing weight loss, delaying the increase in SSC, maintaining pH, total acidity and reducing microbial growth. Edible coatings affect oxygen partial pressure and metabolism of fresh food and favor volatile component retention. They control moisture migration between the food product and the environment, protecting it from deterioration, improving the textural quality and decreasing the risk of pathogen growth (Afifah et al., 2019). The coating materials should not confer taste and should improve the keeping quality of the product (Salinas-Roca et al., 2018a).

Some of the most notable benefits of edible coating are the delay of pulp browning and tissue softening. The incorporation of antibrowning and/or firming agents such as calcium ascorbate, citric acid and N-acetyl-L-cysteine into edible coatings is known as an effective tool to enhance their efficacy and is frequently used in the fresh-cut industry. Polysaccharide-based edible coatings have been widely reported as good matrices to incorporate compounds with antibrowning properties in fresh-cut mango and other fruit (Robles-Sánchez et al., 2013; Marín et al., 2020; Bhatkar et al., 2022).

Among the coating agents, chitosan (Pengnet et al., 2014; Gurjar et al., 2018; Salinas-Roca et al., 2018a) and citric acid (Marín et al., 2020) are considered the most effective antibrowning agents, which additionally reduced weight loss, prevented biochemical changes and inhibited microbial growth on FCM. A sensory evaluation of FCM with and without chitosan coating confirmed sensorial similarity of the coated and uncoated fresh-cut pieces (Afifah et al.,

2019).

Plant extracts have the potential to be used as food additives; however, their use is subdued by the undesirable changes they cause in the sensory properties of food (Bernal-Mercado, 2018). However, the results of ethanolic seed extract from mango seeds as coating material of FCM have been promising, not only as antimicrobial agent, but also regarding the increase in phenolic compounds (Vega-Vega et al., 2013; Bernal-Mercado, 2018).

The protein sericin, a natural macromolecular, water-soluble protein, is derived from silkworm. It has been included in the "Generally Recognized as Safe-GRAS" list (Food and Drug Administration, 2001) and can be used as an edible coating for fresh-cut products because it can inhibit the activity of enzyme polyphenol oxidase (PPO). As a coating to FCM, it reduces water loss, which contributes to maintaining the texture (Chimvaree et al., 2019).

Strong interactions can occur between the plasticizers added to the polymer matrix, to improve certain functional properties of the film. Major plasticizers have been used are polyols, such as glycerol, polyethylene glycol, and sorbitol, besides, disaccharides, such as sucrose, and monosaccharides (e.g., fructose, glucose, and mannose) (Zhang and Han, 2016). Type and amount of plasticizers affect properties of the coating (Kokoszka and Lenart, 2007). Hence, their polymer types and optimum concentration of plasticizers should be determined for the success of its use in a variety of condition. Edible films containing two plasticizers had a greater thickness and higher water vapor transmission rate and solubility than film with a single plasticizer. The presence of plasticizers in the coating formulation confers different physical and chemical properties to the film; thus, appropriate selection is required (Afifah et al., 2019).

Composite coating of sesame protein isolate (5%) and mango puree (30%) on fresh mango pieces was less affected by drip loss and improved color and firmness preservation (Sharma et al., 2019).

Nanocomposites are materials with at least one component with

nanometric size (1 - 100 nanometers), which consists of natural polymers as matrix with nanoparticles as filler. Nanocomposite edible coating improves the stability of FCM storage quality and postharvest life. The incorporation of nanoparticles into biopolymers can enhance the characteristics and functional properties including barrier ability, morphology and mechanical strength. Nanocomposite edible coating of fresh-cut cassava with zinc oxide nanoparticles and stearic acid successfully conferred a shelf-life of 12 days at 8°C (Yuliani et al., 2018). Alginate-Chitosan nano-multilayer edible coating extends the shelf-life of FCM up to 8 days (Souza et al., 2015).

## 13. Microbiological aspects of FCM

Fresh-cut food products remain the leading cause of foodborne illness outbreaks (Callejón et al., 2015). Many microorganisms are found in improperly processed fresh-cut products, in particular *Salmonella* spp., *Bacillus spp., Micrococcus spp., Staphylococcus* spp., *Klebsiella* spp., *Pseudomonas* spp. and *Escherichia coli* (Finger et al., 2019), which contribute to high morbidity rates in several countries (Lopes et al., 2021). Among these, bacteria are the greatest cause of foodborne diseases (Draeger et al., 2019).

The surface of mango fruit is covered by a wide variety of microorganisms, which can be found in processed products. (Bokulich et al., 2015; Machado-Moreira et al., 2019; Taïbi et al., 2022). The available water content of cut fruit (about 80%) (Ntuli et al., 2017), together with the readily available sugars, favor microbial growth and compromise both food safety and quality (Taïbi et al., 2022).

Salmonellosis is an important cause of foodborne outbreaks in the United States and Canada due to fresh produce consumption (CDC, 2012). Additionally, other members of the Enterobacteriaceae family may occur naturally on plant material, namely the genera *Pantoea, Klebsiella, Pectobacterium* (Leff and Fierer, 2013) and Cronobacter (Garbowska et al., 2015; Vojkovska et al., 2016; Santo et al., 2018). Steam treatment (ST) at 60°C for 3 min maintained the microbial population below 2.5 log CFU/g (colony-forming units per gram) after 10 days of storage (Leneveu-Jenvrin et al., 2021).

For all mangoes entering the United States, the U.S. Department of Agriculture-Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service mandates a quarantine heat treatment consisting of exposure to 46 °C water for 65–110 min (depending on cultivar and fruit size) (USDA-APHIS, 2002). This procedure is used by producers/ packers to eliminate fly larvae. In all steps, incorrect human handling is a major source of contamination (Graça et al., 2015, 2017; Santo et al., 2018). In any case, a disinfection phase is mandatory in the flowchart of fresh- cut fruit production, and washing with sodium hypochlorite solutions is the most applied method (Santo et al., 2018). Mango can be contaminated with *Salmonella enterica* if the water used for washing during the heat treatment is contaminated. High temperatures of washing/rinsing water may contribute to the internalization of pathogens that may be present in the water (Penteado, 2017). Thus, the microbiological quality of water used in the post-harvest phases is essential.

*Cronobacter sakazakii*, an important pathogen for neonates and immunocompromised adults, has been isolated from various plant food sources, although it has not been associated to outbreaks resulting from the fruit consumption, including mango (Penteado et al., 2014; Ma et al., 2016). Serovars of *Salmonella enterica* tested on 'Palmer' were not able to grow at 28 °C and 4 °C (Ma et al., 2016). However, *S. enterica* serotype *enteritidis* was able to grow in pasteurized pulp of 'Palmer' mango, at 25 °C, after an adaptation phase of 19 days (Penteado et al., 2014).

Despite the recommendation for low-temperature storage, fresh-cut fruit is often exposed to temperature changes during processing and distribution, caused by the opening and closing of refrigerator doors in retail outlets and supermarkets or of domestic fridges (Luciano et al., 2022). This exposure can facilitate pathogen growth and proliferation and compromise food safety (Huang et al., 2019).

18

## 14. Sanitizer compounds

The most used chlorinated sanitizers for minimally processed products with antimicrobial activity are sodium hypochlorite (NaClO) and calcium hypochlorite (CaCl<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub>). These products are relatively inexpensive and easy to apply (Lopes et al., 2021). The recommended dose of chlorine products for FCM is 50 - 200 ppm, at a pH of 6.0–7.5 and a contact time of 2–5 min (Suriati et al., 2021). However, in the presence of organic material, as is the case when freshcut products are sanitized, hypochlorite reacts with the organic matter and produces carcinogenic compounds such as chloroform (CHCl<sub>3</sub>), trihalomethanes and teratogenic haloacetic acids (Teng et al., 2018). At alkaline pH, chlorine can react with nitrogenous bases, producing chloramines (NH<sub>2</sub>Cl), which are also carcinogenic (Wastensson and Eriksson, 2020). For these reasons, the Maximum Residue Limit (MRL) of sodium hypochlorite has been set at 0.01 mg Kg<sup>-1</sup> in the United States (FDA, 2001). In addition, the high reactivity of chlorine with organic matter, in the presence of oxygen, reduces the free chlorine content in water. Therefore, the sanitizing solution must be exchanged after 2 - 3 uses, when the free chlorine concentration sinks below 50  $\mu$ L L<sup>-1</sup> (Teng et al., 2018).

Ozone (O<sub>3</sub>) kills microorganisms by oxidizing vital cell components. However, if inhaled it is toxic, and causes symptoms such as breathing difficulties, irregular heartbeat and drop in blood pressure above 3 mg L<sup>-1</sup>. Inhalation of more than 20 mg L<sup>-1</sup> for 1 h (or 50 mg L<sup>-1</sup> for 30 min) may be fatal. It is noteworthy that ozone-treated food should be packaged by appropriate methods such as airtight closure or vacuum sealing (Aziz and Ding, 2018).

Hydrogen peroxide (H<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub>) solutions at 1 and 5% are alternative sanitizer products recommended for mango (Owino and Ambuko, 2021), mainly to reduce gram-positive and gram-negative bacteria (Lopes et al. (2021). This sanitizer is especially effective against *Salmonella spp.*, *E. coli*O157:H7, *B. subtilis* and other foodborne microbes, at a dose of <0.3 mg L<sup>-1</sup> (in vapor form, otherwise it can be phytotoxic). However, H<sub>2</sub>O<sub>2</sub> is highly oxidizing, and it requires great caution at

handling (Lopes et al., 2021).

Sanitizers that contain calcium, e.g., calcium chloride (CaCl<sub>2</sub>), calcium carbonate (CaCO<sub>3</sub>) and calcium citrate (C1<sub>2</sub>H<sub>10</sub>Ca<sub>3</sub>O<sub>14</sub>), calcium lactate (C<sub>6</sub>H<sub>10</sub>CaO<sub>6</sub>), calcium phosphate (Ca<sub>3</sub>(PO<sub>4</sub>)<sup>2</sup>), calcium propionate (C<sub>6</sub>H<sub>10</sub>CaO<sub>4</sub>) and calcium gluconate (C<sub>12</sub>H<sub>22</sub>CaO<sub>14</sub>), at a dose of 0.5 - 3% for 1–5 min, are alternative possibilities for FCM (Owino and Ambuko, 2021).

Although the treatment with CaCl<sub>2</sub> improved FCM firmness and color more effectively and reliably than untreated samples, calcium treatment did not improve product appeal compared to untreated controls or water-treated FCM. However, consumer appeal was better in CaCl<sub>2</sub> treated samples compared to calcium lactate, at 0.136 M calcium solution. The optimal treatment for 'Tommy Atkins' mango cubes was a 2.5-min dip in 0.136 M CaCl<sub>2</sub> and for 'Kent' a 1-min dip in 0.136 M CaCl<sub>2</sub>. 'Kent' mango was more suitable than 'Tommy Atkins' for fresh-cut processing since tissue browning was less intense and the consumer appeal better (Ngamchuachit et al., 2014).

Organic acids (0.5–1% ascorbic combined with 1–2% citric acids) are good alternatives to prevent browning and discoloration of cut slices (Owino and Ambuko, 2021). Acetic acid (vinegar) at a dose of 4% is also an effective antimicrobial solution for FCM (Aldana et al., 2021). Combinations of organic acid with polysaccharide-based edible coatings such as chitosan or alginate can improve the shelf-life and maintain the FCM quality for 15 days (Salinas-Roca et al., 2018a).

Combined effects of multilayer coatings based on sesame protein, guar gum, calcium chloride and mango puree (Sharma et al., 2019) and ascorbic acid + citric acid + CaCl<sub>2</sub> (Siddiq et al., 2013) have been shown to be useful in extending the shelf-life of FCM.

#### 15. Natural additives

Sanitizers can reduce the decay rate, but consumers are concerned about chemical residues in the product that could affect human health and cause environmental pollution (Ulloa et al., 2015). Therefore, alternative control methods of fresh-cut fruit decay are required. One of the major emerging technologies for reducing quality loss and increasing the safety of fresh-cut fruits and vegetables is the application of natural additives derived from plants and plant products. They represent a source of natural antioxidants and antimicrobials to improve the shelf-life and safety of food, including fresh-cut fruit (Dahech et al., 2013; Senthilkumar and Venkatesalu, 2013).

The mango seed, one of the byproducts of mango processing, has a strong antioxidant capacity and contains a high concentration of bioactive polyphenols higher than, not only mango pulp and peel, but also seeds from other plant species (Vega-Vega et al., 2013; Bernal-Mercado et al., 2018). Major phenolic compounds found in mango seed extract are tannins, quercetin derivatives, gallic acid, ellagic acid and mangiferin (Dorta et al., 2014). These compounds can neutralize free radicals and inactivate microbial cells. Due to these properties, extracts from mango seeds could be added to FCM, with good results in terms of functionality and antimicrobial protection (Vega-Vega et al., 2013). In addition to the antibacterial and antioxidant benefits of mango seed extract for FCM, the sensorial properties of this additive have been approved (Bernal-Mercado et al., 2018).

Neem (*Azadirachta indica*) seed oil is an antimicrobial substance that can improve the microbiological safety and quality of FCM (Kassé et al., 2017). It reduces firmness and color loss and inhibits the development of the main spoilage bacteria throughout the entire storage period, extending the preservation of FCM fruits (Passafiume et al., 2022).

Soaking in noni *(Morinda citrifolia)* juice is reported to have antibacterial, antiviral and antifungal effects. It has been shown to be a potentially valuable technology of decontamination of FCM surfaces (Ulloa et al., 2015).

#### 16. Non-thermal technologies

Nowadays, consumer demand for clean and safe food without compromising the nutritional and sensory food quality is increasing. This has directed the attention of food professionals toward the development of non-thermal technologies that are green, safe and environment-friendly. By non-thermal processing, food is processed at near-room temperature, so the food is undamaged because heat-sensitive nutritious materials remain intact in the food, contrary to thermal food processing. These non-thermal technologies can be used to treat all kinds of food, e.g., fruits, vegetables, pulses, spices, meat, fish, etc. Numerous non-thermal technologies in the food sector have emerged in the last few decades (Jadhav et al., 2021), e.g., ultraviolet radiation (UV-C), pulsed light (PL), light-emitting diodes (LED), cold plasma (CP), high intensity ultrasound (HIU), neutral electrolyzed (NEW) and acidic electrolyzed water (AEW).

### 16.1. Ultraviolet- C (UV-C)

Ultraviolet light (UV-C) treatment is a non-thermal technology used as an alternative option for fresh-cut products (Pataro et al., 2015; Garzón-García et al., 2023). Short wavelength light irradiation (100–280 nm) at very low doses of UV-C (minutes to hours) can induce a series of biochemical events within plant tissues, which stimulates the biosynthesis of defensive secondary metabolites with antimicrobial activity (Ribeiro et al., 2012; Pataro et al., 2015; Garzón-García et al., 2023). These compounds are highly desirable because they contribute to prolong the shelf-life and maintain fruit quality by delaying senescence and fruit ripening. In addition, they induce natural defense compounds against fungi and bacteria (Ribeiro et al., 2012). Moreover, the activation of plant defense mechanisms may also stimulate the formation of bioactive compounds with antioxidant potential, increasing the nutritional value of UV-treated products (Ribeiro et al., 2012; Pataro et al., 2015).

In general, disinfecting fresh fruit pieces with UV-C replaces the conventional disinfection method of sodium hypochlorite immersion. This treatment preserves the fruit quality properties and has a less adverse impact on the environment and on the health of consumers since no dangerous chemicals are applied during minimal processing (Castro-Ibáñez et al., 2016; Meireles et al., 2016; Pezzuto et al., 2016).

Disinfection with UV-C (250 nm for 15 min) maintained the quality of FCM 'Chokanan' up to 15 days and increased the antioxidant enzyme activities (George et al., 2015). Furthermore, an UV-C treatment of FCM 'Tommy Atkins' stored at 5°C for 12 days proved to be effective in preserving microbial safety, total carotenoids, total phenolics and total flavonoids. On the other hand, this treatment decreased fruit firmness (Garzón-García et al., 2023).

## 16.2. Pulsed light (PL)

Pulsed light (PL) is used to decontaminate surfaces by killing microorganisms (Charles et al., 2013b). It can be an alternative to UV-C (Lopes et al., 2017). Pulsed light is also a non-thermal technology considered a modern evolution of the UV-C technology. The difference consists in the exposure times, which are minutes/hours for UV-C treatments versus seconds in PL treatments (Pataro et al., 2015). The efficiency of PL disinfection is higher than that of UV-C, due to its high peak power along with the ability to deliver energy for short durations, typically 1 to 10 pulses per second (Rowan, 2019). This treatment stimulates higher production of bioactive compounds in plant tissues to minimize the damages caused by high power radiation (Pataro et al., 2015). It has become a promising fresh-cut technology since it can inactivate microorganisms, prolong the product shelf-life and induce changes in quality properties (Charles et al., 2013; Gianpiero et al., 2015; Pollock et al., 2017, Hua et al., 2023). In addition, the very short exposure times required to achieve the desired effects could significantly promote the utilization of PL technology on an industrial scale (Rodov et al., 2012).

PL has been approved by the Food and Drug Administration (FDA) (2017) for the production, processing and handling of food up to a cumulative UV dose of  $12 \text{ Jcm}^{-2}$ . The emission spectra must be maintained between 200 and 1100 nm and the pulses last not more than  $\leq 2\text{ms}$  (Rowan, 2019).

Pulsed-light treatments consist of exposing food to intense short pulses (1  $\mu$ s - 0.1 s), from UV to near infrared (100–1100 nm), emitted by an inert gas (e.g. xenon) lamp (Charles et al., 2013b; Pataro et al., 2015; Rowan, 2019). The light intensity of each pulse is about 2 × 10<sup>4</sup> times that of the sun at the sea surface (Hilton et al., 2017). Microorganisms are destroyed according to the intensity and number of pulses applied. Inactivation occurs by means of several mechanisms, e.g., chemical modification and cleavage of DNA, protein denaturation and by other alterations of the cellular material (Charles et al., 2013; Salinas-Roca et al., 2017a).

Flashes of PL at 8 J/cm<sup>2</sup> applied to FCM 'Kent' proved effective to maintain the physical and nutritional quality, color and firmness (Charles et al., 2013b). A PL treatment of FCM 'Tommy Atkins' (0.4 J/cm<sup>2</sup>, 20 pulses) combined with alginate coating (2 %, w/w) or combined with malic acid (2 %, w/w) and alginate coating (2 %, w/w) reduced Listeria innocua counts by 4.5 and 3.9 logs, respectively, with minimal quality deterioration during storage (Salinas-Roca et al., 2016). Treating FCM 'Tommy Atkins' with PL (0.4 J/cm<sup>2</sup>, 20 pulses) combined with alginate coating (2 %, w/w) or combined with malic acid (2 %, w/w) and alginate coating (2 %, w/w) prevented browning during storage at 4 °C for up to 14 days. This treatment also increased antioxidant contents, including mangiferin, and increased phenolic compounds (Salinas-Roca et al., 2018b). In PL treatments, the light application mode is more important than the fluence or final dose applied to FCM. Results indicate that four successive pulses (0.7 J /cm<sup>2</sup>) were more effective than one pulse per day for 4 days to maintain the FCM sensory quality. The differences in this case were related to the degree of structural damage produced by each pulse dose (Lopes et al., 2017).

### 16.3. Light-emitting diode (LED)

In view of their antibacterial effect, light-emitting diodes (LEDs) at visible wavelengths have gained attention as preservation technology (Kim et al., 2017). Previous studies showed that under refrigerated conditions, blue LEDs of 405 and 460 nm could inactivate various foodborne pathogens, e.g., *E. coli* O157:H7, *L. monocytogenes* and *S. Typhimurium* (Ghate et al., 2013; Kim et al., 2015, Kim et al., 2016).

An FCM treatment with  $405 \pm 5$  nm LED illumination effectively inactivated 97–99% of *E. coli* O157:H7, *L. monocytogenes* and *Salmonella spp.*, but was less effective to destroy *L. monocytogenes* and *E. coli* O157:H7 at room temperature (Kim et al., 2017).

#### 16.4. Cold plasma (CP)

Cold plasma (CP), a non-thermal treatment technology safety and high efficiency, have shown no or minimal impacts on the physical, chemical, nutritional and sensory (Pankaj et al., 2018) and has attracted increasing attention from agriculture and food industries (Sruthi et al., 2022).

Plasma is the fourth state of matter and has a high-energy system that contains diverse reactive species, including molecules, atoms, ions, electrons, free radicals, photons, and visible light, providing physical and chemical interactions with food components, contributing to the improvement of food security and health (Saremnezhad et al., 2021). In practice, CP can be created in several different ways, including glow discharge, corona discharge, radiofrequency discharge, dielectric barrier discharge (DBD), microwave discharge and cold plasma jet (Asl et al., 2022; YI et al., 2022).

The oxidative species released via CP treatment function as disinfectants to trigger membrane lipid peroxidation and damage proteins and nucleic acids of microorganisms on the food (Saremnezhad et al., 2021). In addition, the CP treatment can potentially alter metabolic features and strengthen the endurance capacity of fresh agricultural products regarding senescence and adverse environmental stresses (Sruthi et al., 2022).

Antioxidants can protect lipids and increase their oxidative stability when food is subjected to plasma reactive species. They suppress free radicals, bind oxygen, and prevent oxidation, thereby preserving food quality. The significant antioxidants and scavenging compounds present in fruits and vegetables are phenolic compounds, vitamin C, and vitamin E. Though antioxidant activity is not an exact indication of quality in the food industries, it closely points to the various polyphenols, flavanols, and flavonoids present in foods (Pankaj et al., 2018). These bioactive compounds show the ability to scavenge free radicals accountable for sundry infections and diseases often triggered by oxidative stress and thus minimize their threat (Sruthi et al., 2022).

The CP treatment (75 kV, 3 min) applied to FCM markedly inhibited the increase in total microbial counts, improving food safety. Moreover, it intensified antioxidant enzyme activities and delayed the deterioration of sensory and nutritional qualities (YI et al., 2022).

### 16.5. High Intensity Ultrasound (HIU)

High-intensity ultrasound (HIU) processing has become a response to the ever-increasing demand for high-quality, convenient meals with natural taste, without addition of chemical preservatives (Chavan et al., 2022). The technology is based on the application of low-frequency ultrasound (20 to 100 kHz) at high intensity (10 to 1000 W/cm<sup>2</sup>) (Wang et al., 2021). It is used to modify physical, biochemical, and mechanical properties of food products by acoustic cavitation that increases temperature and pressure, among other mechanisms (Muñoz-Almagro et al., 2021). High-intensity ultrasound is an alternative to thermal processes, which are frequently associated to a loss of sensory and nutritional characteristics (Fernandes and Rodrigues, 2009). It has considerable ability to maintain the high quality of food by inhibiting microbial contamination (Aadil et al., 2018; Zia et al., 2019) by breaking down the microbial cell wall (Birmpa et al.,

2013) and inhibiting enzymes that control degradation actions such as pectin methylesterase, peroxidases and PPO (Santos et al., 2015; Aadil et al., 2020). HIU also preserves the fresh-looking color (Ranjha et al., 2021) and surface characteristics of fresh-cut food products (Giannakourou and Tsironi, 2021; Roslia et al., 2022).

In the HIU treatment of FCM 'Tommy Atkins', with sonication at 25kHz and 55W/cm<sup>2</sup> for 30 min and cold storage for 7 days at 4 °C, the results of microorganism inactivation were not satisfactory, and the fruit quality was negatively affected (Santos et al., 2015). However, HIU applied to FCM 'Kent' was reported to be a more effective technique for browning prevention, with lower PPO activity than the chemical (ascorbic acid and calcium chloride agents) and physical (immersion in hot water) applications. This technology also prevented color degradation, improved the bioactive content (ascorbic acid, antioxidant capacity and total phenolics) and maintained sensory properties (Yildiz and Aadil, 2022).

# 16.6. Neutral electrolyzed (NEW) and acidic electrolyzed water (AEW)

Neutral electrolyzed water (NEW) and acidic electrolyzed water (AEW) are alternative technologies to chlorinated sanitizers with antimicrobial activity (Rahman et al., 2016) for a range of pathogenic microorganisms (Ovissipour et al., 2015; Santo et al., 2018; Lopes et al., 2021). With respect to bacteria, electrolyzed water can destroy bacterial DNA or disrupt its synthesis. Regarding fungi, it oxidizes the cell wall, disrupts the metabolism of organic compounds and even resistance and survival structures are eliminated (Rahman et al., 2016). Acidic electrolyzed water can be produced with a pH between 2 and 4 (Vásquez-López et al., 2021) and neutral electrolyzed water can have a pH between 6 and 9 (Rahman et al., 2016).

According to Vásquez-López et al. (2021), NEW has several advantages, such as: a) greater stability of chlorine agents and safety for consumer health

(Hamidi et al., 2020) since NEW can be reverted back to water and salt, without an excessive release of toxic substances (Ramírez Orejel and Cano-Buendía, 2020), b) potential for reducing pesticide residues on fresh produce (Han et al., 2017; Hu et al., 2016; Qi et al., 2018), c) no residues of NEW on the fresh produce after application (Rahman and Murshed, 2019), d) no cross-contamination resulting from handling, transportation and packaging (Afari et al., 2015) and e) it has been reported that NEW has no negative effects on the physical, organoleptic and nutritional qualities and chemical components of fresh produce (Hao et al., 2015; Aday, 2016). However, the main disadvantage of EW is that its effectiveness is reduced in the presence of organic compounds, which weakens its antimicrobial capacity (Duan et al., 2016). Acidic electrolyzed water has been less frequently recommended because at such a low pH, dissolved Cl<sub>2</sub> gas can be rapidly lost due to volatilization and the bactericidal activity of the solution decreases with time (Len et al., 2000). In addition, the strong acidity may cause corrosion of equipment and consequently limit practical applications (Guentzel et al., 2008).

The microbiota of fresh-cut 'Tommy Atkins' mango treated by immersion in NEW solutions (0, 75, 150, 225 and 300 mg L<sup>-1</sup>) or chlorine-based product at 200 mgL<sup>-1</sup> stored at  $3 \pm 2 \,^{\circ}$ C,  $85 \pm 5\%$  RH for 0, 6 or 12 days, respectively, was similarly reduced by NEW treatments as by sanitization with commercial product. Nutritional components such as vitamin C, carotenoids and phenolics were preserved by both NEW treatments and commercial chlorine. In terms of the sensory aspects, NEW (150 mgL<sup>-1</sup>) presented the same good acceptability as observed for commercial chlorine and even lower off-flavor intensity than the chlorine-based sanitizer (Lopes et al., 2021).

*Escherichia coli* and *C. sakazakii* were not able to grow on FCM 'Tommy Atkins' maintained at 4°C, 8 °C and 12 °C. However, at 20 °C, exponentially growth of *E. coli* and *C. sakazakii* was observed in less than 72 h and 48 h, respectively Santo et al. (2018). Although both species had a similar growth pattern on FCM, they were differently affected by the decontamination methods tested. *Escherichia coli* was more sensitive to the chemical methods and *C. sakazakii* to the physical method tested. The use of UV-C (5, 7.5 and 10 kJ.m<sup>-2</sup>) reduced *C. sakazakii* by more than 2 log cfu/g, while AEW, NEW and sodium hypochlorite (SH) resulted in smaller reductions. The contrary was observed for *E. coli*, whose population was more efficiently reduced, by 2 log cfu/g, when AEW, NEW and SH were used, than by the physical method. The results highlighted the importance of understanding the differential survival strategies of the microorganisms to protect themselves as well as the food matrices when studying and testing different decontamination technologies. It is also worth bearing in mind that good agricultural and manufacturing practices and efficient refrigeration chains should never be neglected (Santo et al., 2018).

#### 17. Modified atmosphere (MA) and packaging

Despite the effectiveness of antioxidants and the antibrowning and/or firming products, some consumers demand a further reduction in the use of chemical methods for shelf-life extension of fresh-cut fruits (Montoya et al., 2019) and a modified atmosphere (MA) is another approach to this goal.

The MA, with low O<sub>2</sub> and elevated CO<sub>2</sub>, has been created to reduce the respiration rate and water loss. It has been used to extend the shelf-life with good sensorial results. It helps altering the gas composition within a food packaging system. A modified atmosphere relies greatly on the relation between the respiration rate of the produce and gas transfer through the packaging material without any artificial alteration of the initial gas composition. A MA can either be passive: in this case, a MA is generated in a packaging material by relying completely on the natural respiration process of the packaged produce as well as the permeability of the packaging film material to establish the desired gas composition. A MA can also be established actively, by replacing the gaseous composition in a packaged material by the introduction of gas scavengers or absorbers such as ethylene scavengers, oxygen and carbon oxide, thereby establishing the preferred gas mixture within the package (Jideani et al., 2017).

The use of plastic protective films is increasing due to their accessibility

and ease of manipulation. These types of packaging can extend the shelf-life of fresh-cut fruits by reducing moisture, respiration and physiological changes and by preventing changes in aroma, taste, texture and appearance (Montoya et al., 2019). A MA provided by packaging in traditional polymeric film (oriented polypropylene, OPP) or biologically-based film (poly lactic acid, PLA) combined with HT is a promising option to preserve FCM quality (Charles et al., 2013a).

The increasing environmental awareness associated with a greater concern about the impacts of the disposal of synthetic packaging has been stimulating countless studies on biodegradable polymers worldwide (Qadri, 2915; Montoya et al., 2019). However, although the first biodegradable polymers of synthetic origin or from renewable sources have been developed approximately 40 years ago, their use and commercial applications are still limited, not only because of the high costs of these materials but also due to the difficulty of processing them on an industrial scale. Compared with the properties of most non-biodegradable synthetic polymers, biodegradable polymers are rather limited (Leal et al., 2019). Still, ecofriendly materials based on polysaccharides such as starch, alginate and cellulose can be useful for packaging (Montoya et al., 2019).

A formulation of biodegradable packaging containing cassava starch and poly (butylene adipate-*co*-terephthalate) flexible films was considered a viable alternative for FCM storage. The films were developed and extruded at different proportions of cassava starch: PBAT: glycerol with and without green coconut fiber (nanocrystals), annatto and citric acid. The best formula for FCM for 14 storage days contained cassava starch, PBAT, glycerol, nanocellulose, annatto, citric acid (40: 60: 20: 0.55: 0.5: 1.0g). However, the action against microbial agents and antioxidant action to prolong the shelf-life of the product should be further investigated (Leal et al., 2019).

Despite the ecofriendly characteristics of polysaccharide-based films, some of these, such as starch-based films, have poor mechanical properties due to retrogradation effects related to the reassembling of solubilized starch granules. This phenomenon can be controlled by starch modification, blending with other materials, or reinforcing with renewable biodegradable materials (Balakrishnan et al., 2018). Both bacterial (BC) and vegetal cellulose (VC) have good mechanical properties; thus, they can be used to reinforce thermoplastic starch (TPS) films, known as bacterial cellulose nanoribbons (TPS/BC) (Montoya et al., 2014; Montoya et al., 2019).

A thermoplastic starch (TPS) and its composites with bacterial cellulose nanoribbons (TPS/BC) was used as wrapping material to prolong the shelf-life of FCM. Results showed that TPS films reduced mango weight loss until the fifth day (2.84%), whereas the reduction in weight loss in mango wrapped with TPS/BC was even lower (13.18%). Therefore, even though both TPS and TPS/BC films can be used to prolong the fruit shelf-life for five days, the latter being more effective (Montoya et al., 2019).

The widespread use of polyvinyl alcohol (PVA) film is significantly hindered by two marked limitations: water sensitivity and low gas permeability. Liu et al. (2023) tested a novel PVA film coated with monoglyceride (MG) and filled with diatomaceous earth (DS). This PVA/ MG/DS proved promising as ecofriendly packaging material for FCM.

Active packaging technologies seem to be a promising solution to extend shelf-life, owing to their capability to directly interact with the food and/or the surrounding packaging atmosphere, by releasing protective substances or absorbing others that accelerate decay (Apicella et al., 2018a; Apicella et al., 2018b). Among these, oxygen scavengers, antioxidants and antimicrobials are the most interesting and promising active systems, since they deeply affect the quality preservation and extension of the shelf-life of foodstuff. When oxygen is removed from the medium by oxygen scavengers and antioxidants, oxidation reactions, such as lipid oxidation and enzymatic browning, decrease (Apicella et al., 2019a). Antimicrobials, on the other hand, can kill or inhibit the growth of pathogenic microorganisms that may contaminate packaged food products, avoiding a direct application of chemicals on the food surface (Apicella et al., 2019b).

Wrapping FCM in 40  $\mu m$  active layer films that contained an oxygen

scavenger limited color change by 32–36% but decreased pulp firmness after 7 days of storage at 4°C. The use of active packaging proved promising but requires further testing and possibly combinations with other physical or chemical treatments (Leneveu-Jenvrin et al., 2021).

Bacteriocins are small antimicrobial peptides synthesized by bacterial ribosomes, active against the bacterial pathogen (Aljohani et al., 2023). They have been used for food preservation in active packaging and represent a potential alternative for the preservation of fresh-cut fruits. Nisin is a bacteriocin with high antibacterial activity, stable at an acidic pH, unable to cause changes in the food product and relatively little toxic to humans. For FCM, nisin- anchored cellulose films had antimicrobial activity against *Staphylococcus aureus, Listeria monocytogenes, Alicyclobacillus acido terrestris* and *Bacillus cereus,* and did not interfere with the sensory characteristics (Barbosa et al., 2013).

The application of 1-MCP (1µL. L<sup>-1</sup>), an ethylene inhibitor to FCM decreased ethylene production and, consequently, symptoms of water-soaked appearance. In addition, the product also diminished aerobic bacteria, yeast, and mold growth. This ensured product safety for consumption according to European Union standards, after 7 days of refrigerated storage (Castillo-Israel et al., 2015).

### 18. Conclusions

Very few alternatives have been sought to increase the FCM quality and shelf-life to meet the consumers' demands. Despite the difficulties with mango breeding, plant breeders could benefit more from the genetic variability in the species, addressing FCM quality. Sensory evaluations to understand the consumers' preferences are essential and should be done more frequently in FCM research. As far as we know, no field research on agronomic practices that could contribute to FCM quality has been published. Neither have the optimum FCM storage temperatures been studied in depth, with a view to simultaneously maintaining the sensorial quality and keeping the product microbe-free for a longer shelf-life period. In view of the relevance of FCM and perspectives of increasing its consumption, new ecofriendly technologies, such as natural additives and non-thermal treatments that can control foodborne microorganisms replacing sanitizers, and packages made of biodegradable raw materials, have been insufficiently studied so far.

## References

AADIL, R. M. (2021). Sonication, a potential technique for extraction of phytoconstituents: a systematic review. **Processes**, 9(8), 1406.

AADIL, R. M.; KHALIL, A. A.; REHMAN, A.; KHALID, A.; INAM-UR-RAHEEM, M.; KARIM, A.; GILL, A. A.; ABID, M.; AFRAZ, M. T. (2020). Assessing the impact of ultra-sonication and thermo-ultrasound on antioxidant indices and polyphenolic profile of apple-grape juice blend. **Journal of Food Processing and Preservation**, 44(5), e14406.

AADIL, R. M.; ZENG, X. A.; HAN, Z.; SAHAR, A.; KHALIL, A. A.; RAHMAN, U. U.; KHAN, M.; MEHMOOD, T. (2018). Combined effects of pulsed electric field (PEF) and ultrasound (US) on bioactive compounds and microbial quality of grapefruit juice. Journal of Food Processing and Preservation, 42(2), e13507.

ABADIAS, M.; USALL, J.; ANGUERA, M.; SOLSONA, C.; VIÑAS, I. (2008). Microbiological quality of fresh, minimally-processed fruit and vegetables, and sprouts from retail establishments. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**. 123 (1–2), 121–129.

ABEDELMAKSOUD, T.G.; HESARINEJAD, M.A.; SHOKROLLAHI YANCHESHMEH, B. (2022). The effect of cold plasma on the enzymatic activity and quality characteristics of mango pulp. **Research and Innovation in Food Science and Technology**, 10, 341–350.

ADAY, M.S. (2016) Application of electrolyzed water for improving postharvest

quality of mushroom. LWT Food Science and Technology, 68, 44-51.

AFARI, G.K.; HUNG, Y.C.; KING, C.H. (2015). Efficacy of neutral pH electrolyzed water in reducing Escherichia coli O157:H7 and *Salmonella typhimurium* DT 104 on fresh produce items using an automated washer at simulated food service conditions. **Journal of Food Science**, 80 (8), M1815–M1822.

AFIFAH, N.; RATNAWATI, L.; DARMAJANA, D. A. (2019). Evaluation of plasticizer addition in composite edible coating on quality of fresh-cut mangoes during storage. In: IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science, 251(1), 012029.

ALDANA, D.S.; AGUILAR, C.N.; CONTRERAS-ESQUIVEL, J.C.; SOUZA, M.P.; DAS GRAÇAS CARNEIRO-DA-CUNHA, M.; NEVÁREZ-MOORILLÓN, G.V. (2021) Use of a Mexican lime (*Citrus aurantifolia* Swingle) edible coating to preserve minimally processed mango (*Mangifera indica* L.). Horticulture Environmental Biotechnology, 62, 765–775.

ALI, A.; YEOH, W.K.; FORNEY, C.; SIDDIQ, M.W. (2018). Advances in postharvest technologies to extend the storage life of minimally processed fruits and vegetables. **Critical Reviews in Food Science and Nutrition**, 58, 2632–2649.

ALBERIO, G. R. A.; MURATORE, G.; LICCIARDELLO, F.; GIARDINA, G; SPAGNA, G. (2015). Aloe vera extract as a promising treatment for the quality maintenance of minimally-processed table grapes. **Food Science and Technology**, 35: 299–306.

ALJOHANI, A. B.; AL-HEJIN, A. M.; SHORI, A. B. (2023). Bacteriocins as promising antimicrobial peptides, definition, classification, and their potential applications in cheeses. **Food Science and Technology**, 43.

AMARO, A.L.; SPADAFORA, N.D.; PEREIRA, M.J.; DHORAJIWALA, R.; HERBERT, R.J.; MULLER, C.T.; ROGERS, H.J.; PINTADO, M. (2018). Multitrait analysis of fresh-cut cantaloupe melon enables discrimination between storage times and temperatures and identifies potential markers for quality assessments. **Food Chemistry**, 241, 222–231.

APICELLA, A.; ADILETTA, G.; MATTEO, M. D.; INCARNATO, L. (2019a). Valorization of olive industry waste products for development of new ecosustainable, multilayer antioxidant packaging for food preservation. **Chemical Engineering Transactions**, 75, 85–90.

APICELLA, A.; SCARFATO, P.; DI MAIO, L.; INCARNATO, L. (2019b). Sustainable active PET films by functionalization with antimicrobial bio-coatings. **Frontiers in Materials**, 6, 243.

APICELLA, A.; SCARFATO, P.; DI MAIO, L.; INCARNATO, L. (2018a). Oxygen absorption data of multilayer oxygen scavenger-polyester films with different layouts. **Data in Brief**, 19, 1530–1536.

APICELLA, A.; SCARFATO, P.; DI MAIO, L.; INCARNATO, L. (2018b). Transport properties of multilayer active PET films with different layers configuration. **Reactive and Functional Polymers**, 127, 29–37.

ASL, P.J.; RAJULAPATI, V.; GAVAHIAN, M.; KAPUSTA, I.; PUTNIK, P.; KHANEGHAH, A.M.; MARSZAŁEK, K. (2022). Non-thermal plasma technique for preservation of fresh foods: a review. **Food Control** 134, 108560.

AZIZ, M.; DING, P. (2018). Ozone application in fresh fruits and vegetables. **Pertanika Journal of Science and Technology**, 4, 29–35.

BALAKRISHNAN, P.; GOPI, S.; MS, S.; THOMAS, S. (2018). UV resistant transparent bionanocomposite films based on potato starch/cellulose for sustainable packaging. **Starch-Stärke**, 70(1-2), 1700139.

BARBOSA, A. A. T.; DE ARAÚJO, H. G. S.; MATOS, P. N.; CARNELOSSI, M.A. G.; DE CASTRO, A. A. (2013). Effects of nisin-incorporated films on the

microbiological and physicochemical quality of minimally processed mangoes. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**, 164(2-3), 135-140.

BERNAL-MERCADO, A. T.; AYALA-ZAVALA, J. F.; CRUZ-VALENZUELA, M. R.; GONZÁLEZ-AGUILAR, G. A.; NAZZARO, F.; FRATIANNI, F.; DE MIRANDA, M.R.A.; SILVA-ESPINOZA, B. A. (2018). Using sensory evaluation to determine the highest acceptable concentration of mango seed extract as antibacterial and antioxidant agent in fresh-cut mango. **Foods**, 7(120),1-13.

BHATKAR, N. S.; SHIRKOLE, S. S.; BRENNAN, C.; THORAT, B. N. (2022). Preprocessed fruits as raw materials: part II—process conditions, demand, and safety aspects. **International Journal of Food Science & Technology**, 57(8), 4918-4935.

BIRMPA, A.; SFIKA, V.; VANTARAKIS, A. (2013). Ultraviolet light and ultrasound as non-thermal treatments for the inactivation of microorganisms in fresh ready-to-eat foods. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**, 167(1), 96–102.

BOKULICH, N.A.; BERGSVEINSON, J.; ZIOLA, B.; MILLS, D.A. (2015). Mapping microbial ecosystems and spoilage-gene flow in breweries highlights patterns of contamination and resistance. **Elife**, 4, e04634.

BOONYARITTHONGCHAI, P.; KEAWMANEE, N. (2020). Effectiveness of hot water treatment incorporated with calcium ascorbate on maintenance of physiological and sensory qualities of fresh-cut ripe Mango cv. Nam Dok Mai. In: **IOP Conference Series: Earth and Environmental Science**, 515(1), 012035 p.

BOONYARITTHONGCHAI, P.; SUPAPVANICH, S.; WONGAREE, C.; UTHAIRATANAKIJ, A.; JITAREERAT, P.; PONGPRASERT, N.; KAEWMANEE, N. (2018). Application of natural extracts from pineapple juice on inhibiting browning symptom of fresh-cut 'Nam Dok Mai' mango. In: **IV Asia Symposium on Quality Management in Postharvest Systems**, 1210, 235-240.

BRECHT, J. K.; PLOTTO, A.; BALDWIN, E. A.; BAI, J.; JAMIR, S.; CRISOSTO,

C.; CRISOSTO, G. (2017). Sensory quality of fresh-cut mango at the consumer level sampled through the year. In **Proceedings of the Florida State Horticultural Society**, 130, 158-164.

BRECHT, J. K.; PLOTTO, A.; MARÍN-GOZALBO, A.; GOODRICH, R. **Fresh-Cut Mango Best Management Practices Manual**. UF/ IFAS Extension HS1443. Available at: https://edis.ifas.ufl.edu/publication/HS1443. 25p.

CALLEJÓN, R.M.; RODRIGUEZ-NARANJO, M.I.; UBEDA, C.; HORNEDO-ORTEGA, R.; GARCIA-PARRILLA, M.C.; TRONCOSO, A.M. (2015) Reported foodborne outbreaks due to fresh produce in the United States and European Union trends and causes. **Foodborne Pathogens & Disease**, 12, 32-38.

CASTILLO-ISRAEL, K. A. T.; GANDIA, J. B. L.; VELEZ, A. C. G.; ABSULIO, W.L.; BAINTO, L. C. (2015). Storage quality of fresh-cut Philippine 'Carabao' mango (*Mangifera indica* L. cv. 'Carabao') fruits with 1-Methylcyclopropene (1-MCP) post-cutting treatment. **International Food Research Journal**, 22(6), 13-18.

CASTRO-IBÁÑEZ, I.; GIL, M.I.; ALLENDE, A. (2016). Ready-to-eat vegetables: current problems and potential solutions to reduce microbial risk in the production chain. **LWT Food Science and Technology,** 284-292.

CHARLES, F.; MORGADO, C. M. A.; MATTIUZ, B.; SALLANON, H. (2013a). Combined effects of postharvest heat treatment and modified atmosphere on quality of fresh-cut melons and mangoes. **Acta Horticulturae**, VI International Conference on Managing Quality in Chains, 1091, 267-273.

CHARLES, F.; VIDAL, V.; OLIVE, F.; FILGUEIRAS, H.; SALLANON, H. (2013b). Pulsed light treatment as new method to maintain physical and nutritional quality of fresh-cut mangoes. **Innovative Food Science & Emerging Technologies**, 18, 190–195.

CHAVAN, P.; SHARMA, P.; SHARMA, S.R.; MITTAL, T.C.; JAISWAL, A.K. (2022) Application of High-Intensity Ultrasound to Improve Food Processing

Efficiency: A Review. Foods, 11(1),122

CHIMVAREE, C.; CUMSINGNOK, T.; WONGS-AREE, C.; SUPAPVANICH, S.; CHAROENRAT, T.; TEPSORN, R.; BOONYARITTHONGCHAI, P. (2020). Substrate reactivity of polyphenol oxidase and browning inhibition of fresh-cut 'Nam Dok Mai Si-Thong' mangoes by protein-based sericin coating. **The Horticulture Journal**, 89(5), 537-544.

CHIMVAREE, C.; WONGS-AREE, C.; SUPAPVANICH, S.; CHAROENRAT, T.; TEPSORN, R.; BOONYARITTHONGCHAI; P. (2019). Effect of sericin coating on reducing browning of fresh-cut mango cv. 'Nam Dok Mai No. 4'. **Agriculture and Natural Resources**, 53(5), 521-526.

CUI, X.; SHANG, Y.; SHI, Z.; XIN, H.; CAO, W. (2009). Physicochemical properties and bactericidal efficiency of neutral and acidic electrolyzed water under different storage conditions. **Journal of Food Engineering**, 91(4), 582-586.

DAHECH, I.; FARAH, W.; TRIGUI, M.; HSSOUNA, A.B.; BELGHITH, H.; BELGHITH, K.S.; ABDALLAH, F.B. (2013) Antioxidant and antimicrobial activities of *Lycium shawii* fruits extract. **International Journal of Biological Macromolecules**, 60,328–333.

DE CORATO, U.; CANCELLARA, F.A. (2019). Measures, technologies, and incentives for cleaning the minimally processed fruits and vegetables supply chain in the Italian food industry. **Journal of Cleaner Production**, 237, 117735.

DEA, S.; BRECHT, J. K.; DO NASCIMENTO NUNES, M. C.; BALDWIN, E. A. (2013). Optimal ripeness stage for processing 'Kent' mangoes into fresh-cut slices. **HortTechnology**, 23(1), 12-23.

DONTHU, N.; KUMAR, S.; MUKHERJEE, D.; PANDEY, N.; LIM, W. M. (2021). How to conduct a bibliometric analysis: An overview and guidelines. **Journal of Business Research**, 133, 285-296. DORTA, E.; GONZÁLEZ, M.; LOBO, M.G.; SÁNCHEZ-MORENO, C.; DE ANCOS, B. (2014) Screening of phenolic compounds in by-product extracts from mangoes (*Mangifera indica* L.) by HPLC-ESI-QTOF-MS and multivariate analysis for use as a food ingredient. **Food Research International**, 57, 51–60.

DRAEGER, C.L.; AKUTSU, R.C.C.A.; ZANDONADI, R.P.; SILVA, I.C.R.; BOTELHO, R.B.A.; ARAUJO, W. M. C (2019). Brazilian foodborne disease national survey: evaluating the landscape after 11 years of implementation to advance research, policy, and practice in public health. **Nutrients**, 11(1), 40.

DUAN, D.; LIU, G.; YAO, P.; WANG, H. (2016). The effects of organic compounds on inactivation efficacy of Artemia salina by neutral electrolyzed water. **Ocean Engineering**, 125, 31–37.

FDA (FOOD AND DRUG ADMINISTRATION) (2001). **Notice of inventory**. https://www.fda.gov/food/generally-recognized-safe-gras/gras-notice-inventory, 12 November 2023.

FERNANDES, F. A. N.; RODRIGUES, S. (2009). Ultrasound processing in minimal processing. **Stewart Post-Harvest Reviews**, 5, 1–7.

FINGER, J.A.F.F.; BARONI, W.S.G.V.; MAFFEI, D.F.; BASTOS, D.H.M.; PINTO, U.M. (2019). Overview of foodborne disease outbreaks in Brazil from 2000 to 2018. **Foods**, 8(10), 434.

GARBOWSKA, M.; BERTHOLD-PLUTA, A.; STASIAK, L. (2015). Microbiological quality of selected spices and herbs including the presence of *Cronobacter* spp. **Food Microbiology,** 49, 1e5.

GARZÓN-GARCÍA, A. M.; RUIZ-CRUZ, S.; DUSSÁN-SARRIA, S.; HLEAP-ZAPATA, J. I.; MÁRQUEZ-RÍOS, E.; DEL-TORO-SÁNCHEZ, C. L.; TAPIA-HERNÁNDEZ, J. A.; CANIZALES-RODRÍGUEZ, D. F.; OCAÑO-HIGUERA, V. M. (2023). Effect of UV-C postharvest disinfection on the quality of fresh-cut 'Tommy Atkins' mango. Polish Journal of Food and Nutrition Sciences, 73(1), 39-49.

GEORGE, D. S.; RAZALI, Z.; SANTHIRASEGARAM, V.; SOMASUNDRAM, C. (2015). Effects of ultraviolet light (UV-C) and heat treatment on the quality of fresh-cut Chokanan mango and Josephine pineapple. **Journal of Food Science**, 80(2), S426-S434.

GHATE, V.S.; NG, K.S.; ZHOU, W.; YANG, H.; KHOO, G.H.; YOON, W.B.; YUK, H.G. (2013). Antibacterial effect of light emitting diodes of visible wavelengths on selected foodborne pathogens at different illumination temperatures. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**, 166, 399–406.

GHIDELLI, C.; PÉREZ-GAGO, M.B. (2018). Recent advances in modified atmosphere packaging and edible coatings to maintain quality of fresh-cut fruits and vegetables. **Critical Reviews in Food Science and Nutrition**, 58, 662–679.

GIANNAKOUROU, M. C.; TSIRONI, T. N. (2021). Application of processing and packaging hurdles for fresh-cut fruits and vegetables preservation. **Food**, 10(4), 830.

GRAÇA, A.; ESTEVES, E.; NUNES, C.; ABADIAS, M.; QUINTAS, C. (2017). Microbiological quality and safety of minimally processed fruits on the marketplace of southern Portugal. **Food Control,** 73, 775e783.

GRAÇA, A.; SANTO, D.; ESTEVES, E.; NUNES, C.; ABADIAS, M.; QUINTAS,C. (2015). Evaluation of microbial quality and yeast diversity in fresh-cut apple.Food Microbiology, 51, 179e185.

GUENTZEL, J. L.; LAM, K. L.; CALLAN, M. A.; EMMONS, S. A.; DUNHAM, V. L. (2008). Reduction of bacteria on spinach, lettuce, and surfaces in food service areas using neutral electrolyzed oxidizing water. **Food Microbiology**, 25(1), 36-41.

GURJAR, P. S.; GARG, N.; YADAV, K. K.; LENKA, J.; SHUKLA, D. K. (2018). Effect of Chitosan on biochemical and microbial quality of minimally processed mango (*Mangifera indica* L.) cubes during storage. **Indian Journal of Horticulture**, 75(1), 130-134.

HAMIDI, M.R.; SHEKARFOROUSH, S.S.; HOSSEINZADEH, S.; BASIRI, S. (2020). Evaluation of the effect of neutral electrolyzed water and peroxyacetic acid alone and in combination on microbiological, chemical, and sensory characteristics of poultry meat during refrigeration storage. **Food Science and Technology International**, 27(6), 499-507.

HAN, Y.; SONG, L.; AN, Q.; PAN, C. (2017). Removal of six pesticide residues in cowpea with alkaline electrolyzed water. **Journal of Science of Food and Agriculture**, 97, 2333–2338.

HAO, J.; LI, H.; WAN, Y. (2015) Effect of electrolyzed oxidizing water treatment on the reduction of nitrite levels in fresh spinach during storage. **Journal of Food Protection**, 78 (3), 549–553.

HILTON, S.T.; MORAES, J.D.; MORARU, C.I. (2017). Effect of sublethal temperatures on pulsed light inactivation of bacteria. Innovative Food Science & Emerging Technologies, 39, 49–54.

HU, Z.; WU, T.; WAN, Y.; HAO, J.; LIU, H. (2016). Study on the removal of dimethoate and chlorpyrifos in leek by slightly acidic electrolyzed water. **Science and Technology of Food Industry**, 1, 49–52.

HUA, X.; LI, T.; WU, C.; ZHOU, D.; FAN, G.; LI, X.; CONG, K.; YAN. Z.; CHENG, X. (2023). Pulsed light improved the shelf-life of apricot (after simulated longdistance air transportation) by regulating cell wall metabolism. **Postharvest Biology and Technology**, 196, 112187.

HUANG, J.; LUO, Y.; ZHOU, B.; ZHENG, J.; NOU, X. (2019). Growth and survival of Salmonela enterica and Listeria monocytogenes on fresh-cut produce and their

juice extracts: impacts and interactions of food matrices and temperature abuse conditions. **Food Control**, 100, 300–304.

JADHAV, H. B.; ANNAPURE, U. S.; DESHMUKH, R. R. (2021). Non-thermal technologies for food processing. **Frontiers in Nutrition**, 8, 657090.

JIDEANI, A. I.O.; ANYASI, T. A.; MCHAU, G. R.; UDORO, E. O.; ONIPE, O. O. (2017). Processing and preservation of fresh-cut fruit and vegetable products. In: KAHRAMANOGLU, I. (Ed.) **Postharvest Handling**, 206p.

KANG, T.; YOU, Y.; HOPTOWIT, R.; WALL, M. M.; JUN, S. (2021). Effect of an oscillating magnetic field on the inhibition of ice nucleation and its application for supercooling preservation of fresh-cut mango slices. **Journal of Food Engineering**, 300, 110541.

KASSÉ, M.; CISSE, M.; CHARLES, F.; DUCAMP, M. N.; MONTET, D.; GUISSE, A. (2017). Inhibiting effects of neem seed oil on pathogenic and spoilage microorganisms of fresh-cut mango (*Mangifera indica* L.). **Fruits**, 72(2), 97-103.

KHEDR, E. H. (2022). Improving the quality of 'Keitt' Mango using pre-harvest calcium lactate treatment and post-harvest applications of kojic and ascorbic acids. **The Journal of Horticultural Science and Biotechnology**, 97(6), 757-772.

KIM, M. CHEE HWA, T.; WOO SUK, B.; HYUN-GYUN, Y. (2017). Antibacterial effect of 405 5 nm light emitting diode illumination against *Escherichia coli* O157:H7, *Listeria monocytogenes*, and *Salmonella* on the surface of fresh-cut mango and its influence on fruit quality. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**, 244, 82–89.

KIM, M.J.; MIKŠ-KRAJNIK, M.; KUMAR, A.; GHATE, V.; YUK, H.G. (2015). Antibacterial effect and mechanism of high-intensity  $405 \pm 5$  nm light emitting diode on *Bacillus cereus*, *Listeria monocytogenes*, and *Staphylococcus aureus* under refrigerated condition. **Journal of Photochemistry and Photobiology**, 153, 33–39.

KIM, M.J.; MIKŠ-KRAJNIK, M.; KUMAR, A.; YUK, H.G. (2016). Inactivation by 405 ± 5 nm light emitting diode on *Escherichia coli O157: H7, Salmonella typhimurium,* and *Shigella sonnei* under refrigerated condition might be due to the loss of membrane integrity. **Food Control**, 59, 99–107.

KIRTIL, E.; OZTOP, M. H.; SIRIJARIYAWAT, A.; NGAMCHUACHIT, P.; BARRETT, D. M.; MCCARTHY, M. J. (2014). Effect of pectin methyl esterase (PME) and CaCl2 infusion on the cell integrity of fresh-cut and frozen-thawed mangoes: An NMR relaxometry study. **Food Research International**, 66, 409-416.

KOKOSZKA, S.; LENART. A. (2007) Edible coatings - formation, characteristics, and use - a review. **Polish Journal of. Food Nutrition Science**, 57(4), 399-404.

LEAL, I. L.; DA SILVA ROSA, Y. C.; DA SILVA PENHA, J.; CRUZ CORREIA, P. R.; DA SILVA MELO, P.; GUIMARÃES, D. H.; BARBOSA, JDV.; DRUZIAN, J. I.; MACHADO, BAS. (2019). Development and application starch films: PBAT with additives for evaluating the shelf-life of 'Tommy Atkins' mango in the freshcut state. **Journal of Applied Polymer Science**, 136(43), 48150.

LEFF, J.W.; FIERER, N. (2013). Bacterial Communities Associated with the surfaces of fresh fruits and vegetables, **PLOS One**, 8 (3), e59310.

LEN, S. V.; HUNG, Y. C.; ERICKSON, M.; KIM, C. (2000). Ultraviolet spectrophotometric characterization and bactericidal properties of electrolyzed oxidizing water as influenced by amperage and pH. **Journal of Food Protection**, 63(11), 1534-1537.

LENEVEU-JENVRIN, C.; APICELLA, A.; BRADLEY, K.; MEILE, J.C.; CHILLET, M.; SCARFATO, P.; INCARNATO, L.; REMIZE, F. (2021) Effects of maturity level, steam treatment or active packaging to maintain the quality of minimally

processed mango (*Mangifera indica* cv. José). Journal of Food Processing and Preservation, 45, e15600.

LINK, J. V.; TRIBUZI, G.; DE MORAES, J. O.; LAURINDO, J. B. (2018). Assessment of texture and storage conditions of mangoes slices dried by a conductive multi-flash process. **Journal of Food Engineering**, *239*, 8-14.

LIU, F.; LI, C.; LIU, C.; ZHENG, J.; BIAN, K.; BAI, H.; ZHANG, Y.; CAO, Y.; XIE, Y.; XIAO, X. (2023). Improvement of hydrophobicity and gas permeability of the polyvinyl alcohol film utilizing monoglyceride coating and diatomaceous earth filling and its application to fresh-cut mango. **ACS Sustainable Chemistry & Engineering**, 11(29), 10938-10949.

LOPES, M. M. A.; SILVA, E. O.; LAURENT, S.; CHARLES, F.; URBAN, L.; DE MIRANDA, M. R. A. (2017). The influence of pulsed light exposure mode on quality and bioactive compounds of fresh-cut mangoes. **Journal of Food Science Technology**, 54, 2332–2340.

LOPES, M. M.; DE LUCENA, H. H.; DA SILVEIRA, M. R. S.; DOS SANTOS GARRUTI, D.; MACHADO, T. F.; DE ARAGÃO, F. A. S.; DE OLIVEIRA SILVA, E. (2021). The use of electrolyzed water as a disinfectant for fresh-cut mango. **Scientia Horticulturae**, 287, 110227.

LUCIANO, W. A.; GRIFFIN, S.; DE SOUZA PEDROSA, G. T.; ALVARENGA, V.; VALDRAMIDIS, V.; MAGNANI, M. (2022). Growth behavior of low populations of *Listeria monocytogenes* on fresh-cut mango, melon, and papaya under different storage temperatures. **Food Microbiology**, 102, 103930.

MA, C.; LI, J.; ZHANG, Q. (2016). Behavior of *Salmonella* spp. on fresh-cut tropical fruits. **Food Microbiology**, 54, 133e141.

MACHADO-MOREIRA, B.; RICHARDS, K.; BRENNAN, F.; ABRAM, F.; BURGESS, C.M. (2019). Microbial contamination of fresh produce: what, where, and how? **Comprehensive Reviews in Food Science and Food Safety**, 18

(6),1727–1750.

MALDONADO-CELIS, M.E., YAHIA, E.M., BEDOYA, R., LAND'AZURI, P., LOANGO, N., AGUILL'ON, J., RESTREPO, B., GUERRERO OSPINA, J.C. (2019). Chemical composition of mango (*Mangifera indica* L.) fruit: nutritional and phytochemical compounds. **Frontiers in Plant Science**. 10, 1073.

MANGANARIS, G.A.; VASILAKAKIS, M.; MIGNANI, I.; DIAMANTIDIS, G.; TZAVELLA-KLONARI, K. (2005). The effect of preharvest calcium sprays on quality attributes, physicochemical aspects of cell wall components and susceptibility to brown rot of peach fruits. **Scientia Horticulturae**, 107, 43–50.

MARÍN, A.; BALDWIN, E. A.; BAI, J.; WOOD, D.; FERENCE, C.; SUN, X.; BRECHT, J.K.; PLOTTO, A. (2020). Edible coatings as carriers of antibrowning compounds to maintain appealing appearance of fresh-cut mango. **HortTechnology**, 31(1), 27-35.

MEIRELES, A.; GIAOURIS, E.; SIMÕES, M. (2016). Alternative disinfection methods to chlorine for use in the fresh-cut industry. **Food Research International**. 82, 71e85.

MONTOYA, Ú.; ZULUAGA, R.; CASTRO, C.; GOYANES, S.; GAÑÁN, P. (2014). Development of composite films based on thermoplastic starch and cellulose microfibrils from Colombian agroindustrial wastes. **Journal of Thermoplastic Composite Materials**, 27(3), 413-426.

MONTOYA, Ú.; ZULUAGA, R.; CASTRO, C.; VÉLEZ, L.; GAÑÁN, P. (2019). Starch and starch/ bacterial nanocellulose films as alternatives for the management of minimally processed mangoes. **Starch-Stärke**, 71(5-6).

MUÑOZ-ALMAGRO, N.; MORALES-SORIANO, E.; VILLAMIEL, M.; CONDEZO-HOYOS, L. (2021). Hybrid high-intensity ultrasound and microwave treatment: a review on its effect on quality and bioactivity of foods. **Ultrasonics Sonochemistry**, *80*, 105835.

45

NGAMCHUACHIT, P.; SIVERTSEN, H. K.; MITCHAM, E. J.; BARRETT, D. M. (2014). Effectiveness of calcium chloride and calcium lactate on maintenance of textural and sensory qualities of fresh-cut mangos. Journal of Food Science, 79(5), C786-C794.

NGAMCHUACHIT, P.; SIVERTSEN, H. K.; MITCHAM, E. J.; BARRETT, D. M. (2015). Influence of cultivar and ripeness stage at the time of fresh-cut processing on instrumental and sensory qualities of fresh-cut mangos. **Postharvest Biology and Technology**, 106, 11-20.

NTULI, V.; CHATANGA, P.; KWIRI, R.; GADAGA, H.T.; GERE, J.; MATSEPO, T.; POTLOANE, R.P. (2017). Microbiological quality of selected dried fruits and vegetables in Maseru, Lesotho. **African Journal of Microbiology Research**. 11 (5),185–193.

ORGANISATION DES NATIONS UNIES POUR L'ALIMENTATION ET L'AGRICULTURE (2020). Perspectives à moyen terme: perspectives concernant la production et le commerce mondiaux des bananes et des fruits tropicaux 2019-2028. http://www.fao.org/3/ca7568fr/ca7 568fr.pdf.

OVISSIPOUR, M.; AL-QADIRI, H.M.; SABLANI, S.S. (2015). Efficacy of acidic and alkaline electrolyzed water for inactivating *Escherichia coli* O104:H4, *Listeria monocytogenes*, *Campylobacter jejuni*, *Aeromonashydrophila*, and *Vibrio parahaemolyticus* in cell suspensions. **Food Control**, 53, 117–123.

OWINO, W. O.; AMBUKO, J. L. (2021) Mango fruit processing: options for smallscale processors in developing countries. **Agriculture**, 11, 1105.

PASSAFIUME, R.; TINEBRA, I.; GAGLIO, R.; SETTANNI, L.; SORTINO, G.; ALLEGRA, A.; FARINA, V. (2022). Fresh-Cut Mangoes: How to increase shelf-life by using neem oil edible coating. **Coatings**, 12(5), 664.

PATARO, G.; SINIK, M.; CAPITOLI, M. M.; DONSÌ, G.; FERRARI, G. (2015). The

influence of post-harvest UV-C and pulsed light treatments on quality and antioxidant properties of tomato fruits during storage. **Innovative Food Science** & Emerging Technologies, 30, 103-111.

PANKAJ, S. K.; WAN, Z.; KEENER, K. M. (2018). Effects of cold plasma on food quality: a review. **Foods**, 7 (1), 4.

PENGNET, N.; SANG-ON, B.; CHAIPRASART, P. (2014). Selection of edible chitosan and gum arabic coating used to preserve fresh-cut' Nam Dok Mai# 4'mango (*Mangifera indica* L.). **Acta Horticulturae**, 1213, 185-192.

PENTEADO, A.L. (2017). Microbiological safety aspects of mangoes (*Mangifera indica*) and papayas (*Carica papaya*): a mini-review. Vigilância Sanitária, **Debate**, 5, 127e140.

PENTEADO, A.L.; CASTRO, M.F.P.M.; REZENDE, A.C.B. (2014). Salmonella enterica serovar Enteritidis and Listeria monocytogenes in mango (Mangifera indica L.) pulp: growth, survival, and cross-contamination. Journal of the Science of Food and Agriculture, 99, 2746e2751.

PEREA-MORENO, A.J.; PEREA-MORENO, M.A.; DORADO, M.P. MANZANO-AGUGLIARO, F. (2018). Mango stone properties as biofuel and its potential for reducing CO2 emissions. **Journal of Cleaner Production**, 190, 53–62.

PEZZUTO, A.; BELLUCO, S.; LOSASSO, C.; PATUZZI, I.; BORDIN, P.; PIOVESANA, A.; COMIN, D.; MIONI, R.; RICCI, A. (2016). Effectiveness of washing procedures in reducing *Salmonella enterica* and *Listeria monocytogenes* on a raw leafy green vegetable (*Eruca vesicaria*). **Frontiers in Microbiology**, 7, 1663.

PLOTTO, A.; BALDWIN, E. A.; BAI, J.; MARÍN, A.; CRISOSTO, C. H.; CRISOSTO, G. M.; ABRAHAN, C.; XIE, Y.R.; STAHL, S.L.; BRECHT, J. K. (2018). Optimizing Quality of Fresh-cut Mangoes. **In 2018 ASHS Annual Conference. ASHS**. POLLOCK, A.M.; SINGH, A.P.; RAMASWAMY, H.S.; NGADI, M.O. (2017). Pulsed light destruction kinetics of *L. monocytogenes*. **LWT Food Science and Technology**, 84, 114–121.

PUTNIK, P.; KOVACEVIC, D.B.; HERCEG, K.; ROOHINEJAD, S.; GREINER, R.; BEKHIT, A.E.; LEVAJ, B. (2017). Modelling the shelf-life of minimally-processed fresh-cut apples packaged in a modified atmosphere using food quality parameters. **Food Control**, 81, 55–64.

QADRI, O.S.; YOUSUF, B.; SRIVASTAVA, A.K. (2015). Fresh-cut fruits and vegetables: critical factors influencing microbiology and novel approaches to prevent microbial risks - a review. **Cogent Food & Agriculture**, 1 (1),1121606.

QI, H.; HUANG, Q.; HUNG, Y.C. (2018). Effectiveness of electrolyzed oxidizing water treatment in removing pesticide residues and its effect on produce quality. **Food Chemistry**, 239, 561–568.

RAHMAN, S.M.E.; KHAN, I.; OH, D.H. (2016). Electrolyzed water as a novel sanitizer in the food industry: current trends and future perspectives. **Comprehensive Reviews in Food Science and Food Safety**, 15, 471–490.

RAHMAN, S.M.E.; MURSHED, H.M. (2019). **Application of electrolyzed water in livestock**. In: DING, T.; OH, D.H.; LIU, D. (Eds.), Electrolyzed Water in Food: Fundamentals and Applications. Springer. 205-222.

RAMÍREZ-OREJEL, J.C.; CANO-BUENDÍA, J.A. (2020). Applications of electrolyzed water as a sanitizer in the food and animal-by products industry. **Processes**, 8 (5), 1–19.

RANJHA, M. M. A. N.; IRFAN, S.; LORENZO, J. M.; SHAFIQUE, B.; KANWAL, R.; PATEIRO, M.; ARSHAD, R. N.; WANG, L.; NAYIK, G. A.; ROOBAB, U.; Sonication, a potential technique for extraction of phytoconstituents: a systematic review. **Processes**, 9(8), 1406. RIBEIRO, C.; CANADA, J.; ALVARENGA, B. (2012). Prospects of UV radiation for application in post-harvest technology. **Emirates Journal of Food and Agriculture**, 24(6), 586–597.

ROBLES-SANCHEZ, M. R.; ROJAS-GRATUE, AL. M., ODRIOZOLA-SERRANO, I.; GONZALEZ-AGUILAR, G.; MARTIN-BELLOSO, O. (2013) Influence of alginate-based edible coating as carrier of antibrowning agents on bioactive compounds and antioxidant activity in fresh-cut 'Kent' mangoes. **LWT Food Science and Technology**, 50(1), 240-246.

RODOV, V.; VINOKUR, Y.; HOREV, B. (2012). Brief post-harvest exposure to pulsed light stimulates coloration and anthocyanin accumulation in fig fruit (*Ficus carica* L.). **Postharvest Biology and Technology**, 68, 43–46.

ROMIG, W. R. (1995) Selection of cultivars for lightly processed fruits and vegetables. **HorScience**, 30(1), 38-40.

ROSLIA, S. R.; ADZAHAN, N. M.; RADU, S.; KARIM, R.; ADZAHAN, N. M.; AADIL, R. M.; KOH, P. C. (2022). Impact of sanitizing solutions on microbial reduction and quality of fresh-cut pennywort (*Centella asiatica*) leaves. **Journal of Food Science and Technology**, *59*(*3*), 1211–1220.

ROWAN, N. J. (2019). Pulsed light as an emerging technology to cause disruption for food and adjacent industries–Quo vadis? **Trends in Food Science & Technology**, 88, 316-332.

SALINAS-HERNÁNDEZ, R. M.; GONZÁLEZ-AGUILAR, G. A.; TIZNADO-HERNÁNDEZ, M. E. (2015). Utilization of physicochemical variables developed from changes in sensory attributes and consumer acceptability to predict the shelf-life of fresh-cut mango fruit. **Journal of Food Science and Technology**, 52, 63-77.

SALINAS-ROCA, B.; GUERREIRO, A.; WELTI-CHANES, J.; ANTUNES, M.D.;

MARTÍN-BELLOSO, O. (2018a) Improving quality of fresh-cut mango using polysaccharide-based edible coatings. International Journal of Food Science & Technology, 53, 938–945.

SALINAS-ROCA, B.; SOLIVA-FORTUNY, R.; WELTI-CHANES, J.; MARTÍNS-BELLOSO, O. (2018b) Effect of pulsed light, edible coating and dipping on the phenolic ant antioxidant potential of fresh-cut mango. **Journal of Food Processing and Preservation**, 42(5), e13591.

SALINAS-ROCA, B.; SOLIVA-FORTUNY, R.; WELTI-CHANES, J.; MARTÍNS-BELLOSO, O. (2016). Combined effect of pulsed light, edible coating, and malic acid dipping to improve fresh-cut mango safety and quality. **Food Control**, 66, 190–197.

SALINAS-ROCA, B.; WELTI-CHANES, J.; MARTIN-BELLOSO, O.; SOLIVA-FORTUNY, R. (2017). Processing and Quality of Fresh-cut Mangoes. **Handbook** of Mango Fruit: Production, Postharvest Science, Processing Technology and Nutrition, 151-167.

SANTO, D.; GRAÇA, A.; NUNES, C.; QUINTAS, C. (2018). *Escherichia coli* and *Cronobacter sakazakii* in 'Tommy Atkins' minimally processed mangos: survival, growth and effect of UV-C and electrolyzed water. **Food Microbiology**, 70, 49-54.

SANTOS, J. G. A; FERNANDES, F. A. N.; OLIVEIRA, L., S.; DE MIRANDA, M. R. A. (2015). Influence of ultrasound on fresh-cut mango quality through evaluation of enzymatic and oxidative metabolism. **Food and Bioprocess Technology**, 8, 1532-1542.

SAREMNEZHAD, S.; SOLTANI, M.; FARAJI, A.; HAYALOGLU, A.A. (2021). Chemical changes of food constituents during cold plasma processing: a review. **Food Research International.** 147, 110552.

SELLAMUTHU, P. S.; DENOYA, G. I.; SIVAKUMAR, D.; POLENTA, G. A.;

SOUNDY, P. (2013). Comparison of the contents of bioactive compounds and quality parameters in selected mango cultivars. **Journal of Food Quality**, 36(6), 394-402.

SENTHILKUMAR, A., VENKATESALU, V. (2013) Chemical constituents, in vitro antioxidant, and antimicrobial activities of essential oil from the fruit pulp of wood apple. **Industrial Crop and Products**, 46, 66–672.

SHARMA, L.; SAINI, C.S.; SHARMA, H.K.; SANDHU, K.S. (2019) Biocomposite edible coatings based on cross linked-sesame protein and mango puree for the shelf-life stability of fresh-cut mango fruit. **Journal Food Process Engineering**, 42, e12938.

SHARMA, S.; RAO, T. V. R. (2017). Responses of fresh-cut products of four mango cultivars under two different storage conditions. **Journal of Food Science and Technology**, 54, 1689-1702.

SHENDE, D.; KOUR, M.; DATTA, A.K. (2020) Evaluation of sensory and physicochemical properties of Langra variety mango leather. **Journal of Food Measurement and Characterization**, 14, 3227–3237.

SIDDIQ, M.; SOGI, D. S.; DOLAN, K. D. (2013). Antioxidant properties, total phenolics, and quality of fresh-cut 'Tommy Atkins' mangoes as affected by different pre-treatments. **LWT Food Science and Technology**, 53(1), 156-162.

SIDDIQ, M.; SOGI, D.S.; ROIDOUNG, S. (2017) Mango processing and processed products. In: Handbook of Mango Fruit: Production, Postharvest Science, Processing Technology and Nutrition; John Wiley & Sons: Hoboken, NJ, USA; pp. 195–216.

SIVANKALYANI, V.; MAOZ, I.; FEYGENBERG, O.; MAURER, D.; ALKAN, N. (2017). Chilling stress upregulates  $\alpha$ -linolenic acid-oxidation pathway and induces volatiles of C6 and C9 aldehydes in mango fruit. **Journal of Agricultural and Food Chemistry**, 65, 632–638.

SOUZA, M. P.; VAZ, A. F.; CERQUEIRA, M. A.; TEXEIRA, J. A.; VICENTE, A. A.; CARNEIRO-DA-CUNHA, M. G. (2015). Effect of an edible nanomultilayer coating by electrostatic self-assembly on the shelf-life of fresh-cut mangoes. **Food and Bioprocess Technology**, 8, 647-654.

SRUTHI, N.U.; JOSNA, K.; PANDISELVAM, R.; KOTHAKOTA, A.; GAVAHIAN, M.; KHANEGHAH, A.M. (2022). Impacts of cold plasma treatment on physicochemical, functional, bioactive, textural, and sensory attributes of food: a comprehensive review. **Food Chemistry**. 368, 130809.

STONEHOUSE, G.G.; EVANS, J.A. (2015). The use of supercooling for fresh foods: a review. **Journal of Food Engineering**. 148, 74–79.

SUKHONTHARA, S.; KEAWKA, K.; THEERAKULKAIT, C. (2016). Inhibitory effect of rice bran extracts and its phenolic compounds on polyphenol oxidase activity and browning in potato and apple puree. **Food Chemistry**, 190, 922–927.

SUPAPVANICH, S; BOONYARITTHONGCHAI, P. (2016). Visual appearance maintenance of fresh-cut 'Nam Dok Mai' mango fruit. International Food Research Journal, 23(1), 389.

SURIATI, L.; UTAMA, I.S.; HARSOJUWONO, B.A.; GUNAM, I.B.W.; ADNYANA, I. (2021) Differences in physicochemical characters of fresh-cut mango, mangosteen and rambutan due to calcium chloride application. Journal of Food Science & Nutrition, 7(3), e100107.

TAÏBI, A.; DIOP, A.; LENEVEU-JENVRIN, C.; BROUSSOLLE, V.; LORTAL, S.; MÉOT, J. M.; SORIA, C.; CHILLET, M.; LECHAUDEL, M.; MINIER, J.; CONSTANCIAS, F., REMIZE, F.; MEILE, J. C. (2022). Dynamics of bacterial and fungal communities of mango: from the tree to ready-to-eat products. **Food Microbiology**, 108, 104095.

TAPPI, S.; GOZZI, G.; VANNINI, L.; BERARDINELLI, A.; ROMANI, S.; RAGNI,

L.; ROCCULI, P. (2016). Cold plasma treatment for fresh-cut melon stabilization. **Innovative Food Science & Emerging Technologies**, 33, 225–233.

TECHAVUTHIPORN, C.; BOONYARITTHONGHAI, P. (2016) Effects of antibrowning agents on wound responses of fresh-cut mangoes. **International Food Research Journal**, 23(5),1879-1886.

TENG, Z.; HAUTE, S.V.; ZHOU, B.; HAPEMAN, C.J.; MILLNER, P.D.; WANG, Q.; LUO, Y. (2018). Impacts and interactions of organic compounds with chlorine sanitizer in recirculated and reused produce processing water. **PLOS One**, 13. (12), e0208945.

TESCO. Fruit and veg revamp cuts food waste and saves shoppers time (2017). Available at: <a href="https://www.tescopl">https://www.tescopl</a> c.com/ news/news-releases/2017/fruit- and-veg-revamp-cuts-foodwaste-and-saves-shoppers-time/>. Accessed 12 November 2023.

ULLOA, J. A.; GONZÁLEZ TAPIA, N. T.; ROSAS ULLOA, P.; RAMÍREZ, J. C.; ULLOA RANGEL, B. E. (2015). Effect of soaking in noni (*Morinda citrifolia*) juice on the microbiological and color behavior of Haden minimally processed mango. **Journal of Food Science and Technology**, 52, 3079-3085.

USDA-APHIS (2002). Plant Protection and Quarantine Treatment Manual, Schedule T102-a.

VÁSQUEZ-LÓPEZ, A.; GÓMEZ-JAIMES, R.; VILLARREAL-BARAJAS, T. (2021). Effectiveness of neutral electrolyzed water and copper oxychloride on fungi spores isolated from tropical fruits. **Heliyon**, 7(9).

VEGA-VEGA, V.; SILVA-ESPINOZA, B. A.; CRUZ-VALENZUELA, M. R.; BERNAL-MERCADO, A. T.; GONZÁLEZ-AGUILAR, G. A.; VARGAS-ARISPURO, I.; CORRALES-MALDONADO, C. G.; J. AYALA-ZAVALA, J. F. (2013). Antioxidant enrichment and antimicrobial protection of fresh-cut mango applying bioactive extracts from their seeds by-products. **Food and Nutrition**  Sciences, 4, 197-203.

VOJKOVSKA, H.; KARPISKOVA, R.; ORIESKOVA, M.; DRAHOVSKA, H. (2016). Characterization of *Cronobacter* spp. isolated from food of plant origin and environmental samples collected from farms and from supermarkets in the Czech Republic. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**, 217, 130e136.

WANG, J.; LIU, Q.; XIE, B.; SUN, Z. (2020) Effect of ultrasound combined with ultraviolet treatment on microbial inactivation and quality properties of mango juice. **Ultrasonics sonochemistry**, 64, 105000.

WANG, T.; CHEN, X.; WANG, W.; WANG, L.; JIANG, L.; YU, D.; XIE, F. (2021). Effect of ultrasound on the properties of rice bran protein and its chlorogenic acid complex. **Ultrasonics Sonochemistry**, *79*, 105758.

WASTENSSON, G.; ERIKSSON, K. (2020). Inorganic chloramines: a critical review of the toxicological and epidemiological evidence as a basis for occupational exposure limit setting. **Critical Reviews in Toxicology**, 50, 219–271.

WINKLER, A.; FIEDLER, B.; KNOCHE, M. (2020). Calcium physiology of sweet cherry fruits. **Trees**, 34, 1157–1167.

YAN, R., LIU, Y., GURTLER, J.B., KILLINGER, K., FAN, X. (2017). Sensitivity of pathogenic and attenuated *E. coli* O157:H7 strains to Ultraviolet-C light as assessed by conventional plating methods and ethidium monoazide-PCR. **Journal of Food Safety**, 37(4), e12346.

YI, J.; Y. DING (2014) Dual effects of protein isolates on the inhibition of enzymatic browning and clarification of apple juice. **Czech Journal of Food Sciences**, 32, 601–609.

YI, F.; WANG, J.; XIANG, YUN, Y. Z.; PAN, Y.; JIANG, Y.; ZHANG, Z. (2022) Physiological and quality changes in fresh-cut mango fruit as influenced by cold

plasma. Postharvest Biology and Technology, 194, 112105.

YILDIZ, G.; AADIL, R.M. (2022) Comparative analysis of antibrowning agents, hot water, and high-intensity ultrasound treatments to maintain the quality of fresh-cut mangoes. **Journal of Food Science and Technology**, 1–10.

YILDIZ, G.; IZLI, G.; AADIL, R.M. (2020) Comparison of chemical, physical, and ultrasound treatments on the shelf-life of fresh-cut quince fruit (*Cydonia oblonga* Mill.). **Journal of Food Processing and Preservation**, 44(3), e14366

YOUSUF, B.; QADRI, O.S.; SRIVASTAVA, A.K. (2018) Recent developments in shelf-life extension of fresh-cut fruits and vegetables by application of different edible coatings: a review. **LWT Food Science and Technology**, 89, 198–209.

YULIANI, S.; WARDANA, A. A.; MEINDRAWAN, B.; EDHI, N.; MUCHTADI, T. R. (2018). Nanocomposite edible coating from cassava starch, stearic acid and ZnO nanoparticles to maintain quality of fresh-cut mango cv. Arumanis. **The Annals of the University Dunarea De Jos of Galati. Fascicle VI-Food Technology**, 42(2), 49-58.

ZHANG, H.; YAMAMOTO, E.; MURPHY, J.; LOCAS, A. (2020). Microbiological safety of ready-to-eat fresh-cut fruits and vegetables sold on the Canadian retail market. **International Journal of Food Microbiology**, 335, 108855.

ZHANG, Y.; HAN, J.H. (2006) mechanical and thermal characteristics of pea starch films plasticized with monosaccharides and polyols. **Journal of Food Science**, 7(1), 2, E109-E118.

ZIA, S.; KHAN, M. R.; ZENG, X. A.; SHABBIR, M. A.; ASDIL, R. M. (2019). Combined effect of microwave and ultrasonication treatments on the quality and stability of sugarcane juice during cold storage. **International Journal of Food Science and Technology**, 54(8), 2563–2569.



#### Cornelia E. Abreu-Reichart English Translation and Review of Scientific Documents

## EDITORIAL CERTIFICATE 253

This document certifies that the manuscript mentioned below was edited for proper English language, grammar, punctuation, spelling, and overall style by a native English speaking editor at Scholar Translations (CNPJ 25.383.965/000131)

## MANUSCRIPT TITLE

Strategies for fresh-cut mango preservation: insights for the mango industry

# DATE ISSUED

Marechal Floriano, Espirito Santo, Brazil. December 12, 2023

### CORRESPONDING AUTHOR

Francine Lorena Cuquel <flcuquel@gmail.com>

During translation and review, the research content was maintained and the authors' intentions were respected. The final version of the edited paper was controlled by both authors and reviewers and is now ready for publication. This document can however not ensure manuscript acceptance and does not cover later changes to the text. In case of any doubts or concerns about the above article, please feel free to contact Scholar Translations at <u>corabreich@gmail.com</u>.

Cant

Cornelia Elisabeth Abreu-Reichart

Journals and universities that officially recommend and continuously use services of Scholar Translations: Crop Breeding and Applied Biotechnology (CBAB), official journal of the Brazilian Society of Plant Breeding (www.sbmp.org.br), Brazilian Journal of Soil Science (RBCS), since 1977 journal of the Brazilian Society of Soil Science Universidade Estadual do Norte Fluminense Darcy Ribeiro (UENF); Pós-Graduação em Genética e Melhoramento de Plantas Universidade Federal de Sergipe (UFS); Programa de Pós-Graduação em Agricultura e Biodiversidade – PPGAGRI

> Rua Lovinia Pratti 243/ Bairro Sta Rita 29255-000 Marechal Floriano – Espírito Santo - BRAZIL